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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | would like to present the audited annual results of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015.

I.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

In 2015, the Chinese government insisted upon the general working
theme of making progress while maintaining stability, firmly grasping
onto initiatives to develop society and economy, actively adapting to the
“new norms” in economic development, properly responding to
challenges posed by major risks, fostering adjustments via reforms and
development via innovations, and thereby streamlining the nation’s
economic structure and allowing the nation’s reform and opening more
in depth. Generally speaking, the overall economic performance was
stable and sustained a trend of high-to-medium speed growth, making
progress and demonstrating positivity amidst stability. In 2015, the
national gross domestic product reached RMB67.67 trillion, representing
a year-on-year growth of 6.9%, which pace was a record low for the
past 25 years.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
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During the reporting period, under the influence of a multitude of
factors including the macro-economy condition and the implementation
of more stringent emission regulations, the heavy-duty truck market in
the PRC was gloomy and reported a sustained drop in sales volume,
delivering sales of 551,000 units, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 25.98%. Under such influence, during the reporting period, the
Company reported sales of 118,000 units of heavy-duty truck engines,
representing a year-on-year drop of 56.5%. The Company nevertheless
maintained its leading position in the industry. Shaanxi Heavy-duty
Motor Company Limited (BRFEEARZEARAF]), a controlling
subsidiary of the Company, reported an aggregate sales of 56,000 units
of heavy-duty trucks for the year, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 39.1%, but bringing its ranking up to the fourth in the domestic
heavy-duty truck industry in the PRC, and further boosting its
competitiveness. Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. (RPEAx 5 Ein AR & T
‘AA]), a controlling subsidiary of the Company, has maintained its
leading position in the industry with its aggregate sales of 407,000 units
of gear boxes, representing a year-on-year decrease of 34.4%.

During the reporting period, fixed-asset investments in the PRC
(excluding agricultural households) reached RMB55.2 trillion,
representing a year-on-year growth of 10.0%, a drop of 5.7 percentage
points in growth rate year-on-year. The total planned investments for
newly-commenced construction projects reached RMB40.8 trillion,
representing a year-on-year growth of 5.5%, an increase of 0.8
percentage point in growth rate year-on-year. Investments in property
development reached RMB9.6 trillion, representing a year-on-year
growth of 1.0%, a drop of 9.5 percentage points in growth rate year-
on-year. As such, the overall demand in the construction machinery
industry was weak, with a severe drop in sales volume. In 2015, the
construction machinery market reported sales of approximately 367,000
units, representing a year-on-year decrease of 31.0%, among which, the
sales volume of wheel loaders with a load capacity of 5 tonnes was
42,000 units, representing a year-on-year decrease of 54.4%. The
Company sold a total of 27,000 units of engines for wheel loaders with
a load capacity of 5 tonnes, representing a year-on-year decrease of
49.3%. The Company continued to maintain a leading position in the
market of wheel loaders with a load capacity of 5 tonnes with its market
share of more than 60%.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

During the reporting period, under the influence of factors including
more stringent emission regulations and accelerated urbanization etc.,
some segments in China’s passenger vehicle market achieved growth
whilst others reported decline. China’s passenger vehicle industry
reported an aggregate sales figure of 595,400 units (including
incomplete passenger vehicles) for the whole year, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 1.9%. Among such, benefiting from the national
subsidy policy, the new-energy passenger vehicles segment grew
exponentially and became the major force in driving the growth of the
passenger vehicles market. In addition, under the government’s policies
to stimulate the growth of sales volume of passenger vehicles in the
second half of the year, the large-sized passenger vehicles market
delivered sound performance with a slight growth of 0.33% year-on-
year. On the other hand, with a share of the transportation market
having been taken up by China’s national express rail and the
increasingly stringent supervision on the passenger transportation,
market sectors including the highway passenger transportation market
did not perform well. During the reporting period, the Company’s
aggregate sales of engines for use in passenger vehicles amounted to
20,300 units, representing a year-on-year decrease of 10.2%, and
accounted for 12.5% of the market share of the large-sized and
medium-sized passenger vehicles.

During the reporting period, adopting a market-oriented approach, the
Company further expedited the structural adjustments of its products in
an effort to continually increase its risk-resistance capacity. In 2015, the
Company reported a sales figure of 164,000 units of its conventional
products of 10L and 12L engines, maintaining the stable leading position
of heavy-duty engine products in the heavy-duty truck market, the
market of wheel loaders with a load capacity of 5 tonnes and the
market of passenger vehicles with a span of over 11 metres. Meanwhile,
sales of strategic products grew substantially, increasing by 6 times year-
on-year to 11,000 units of Yangchai VM engines, by 133% to 1,237
units of WP13 engines, by 6 times to 495 units of new-energy power
system, and by nearly 10 times to 1,544 units of engines for use in fork-
lift trucks. During the reporting period, Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor
Company Limited, a controlling subsidiary of the Company, explored the
possible implementation of a products series operation business model
with an interactive process across multiple disciplines such as product
design, delivery, marketing etc. based on customer requirements.
Obvious growth was reported in sales volume in the truck market. The
gear box business of Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. grew against the
adversities faced by the market, and reported a steady rise in its overall
market share and market sales volume, thereby acting as an important
support to guard against the market fluctuations in the industry, and
further articulated the effectiveness of the adjustment made to the
product structure.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
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During the reporting period, the Company was committed to the main
theme of “Improving Quality and Efficiency; Achieving Reform and
Transformations”, strictly adhering to the notion of growing organically
and being driven by innovation, expediting its transformation, uplifting
the all-round quality of development, and attaining sound and stable
development. Firstly, with the perspective of the whole value chain, we
strove to shape our products with the “Three Core Competitiveness” in
terms of cost, technology and quality, addressing our customers’ needs
for product diversity and in active response to the impending trend of
vertical integration of the industry. Secondly, being customer demand-
oriented, we established a target-oriented management mindset, further
streamlined and enhanced the research and development (R&D) process
and standardized the management and control process over R&D
operations, thereby further strengthening our technological innovation
capability. In 2015, the key laboratory for testing the reliability of
internal combustion engines of Weichai Power was nominated as one of
China’s National Key Laboratories, becoming the only corporate national
key laboratory for testing the reliability of internal combustion engines in
the industry. Thirdly, we put in place the Weichai WOS management
operation system, unifying the management language under the KPI
system and formalizing the management mechanism through a
hierarchical meeting system, thereby forming a management model that
is feasible and able to be exported and promoted and in turn laying a
solid foundation for the continual enhancement in corporate operation
performance. Fourthly, to continually foster the integration of
information technology usage and industrialization and facilitate
corporate reform and upgrade, we completed the strategic planning for
the development of information technology (IT) usage, defined the
strategic IT blueprint, overall framework and execution roadmap,
smoothly passed acceptance inspection in respect of our “digital
workshops for automobile engines” and was successfully nominated as
a model project under the national smart manufacturing pilot schemes
in respect of our “comprehensive pilot model project for smart
manufacturing of diesel engines”.

During the reporting period, the Company’s revenue decreased by 7.4%
compared with that in 2014 to approximately RMB73,720 million. The
net profit attributable to shareholders of the listed company was
approximately RMB1,391 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 72.2% compared with that in 2014. The basic earnings
per share was RMBO0.35, representing a decrease of approximately
72.0% compared with that in 2014.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

IT.

[1I.

IV.

DIVIDENDS

Putting shareholders’ interests and returns as its top priority, the
Company has maintained a relatively stable dividend policy. On 30
March 2016, the Company’'s 2015 profit distribution proposal was
approved by the Company’s 3rd meeting of the fourth session of the
Board: the Company proposed the distribution to all shareholders of a
cash dividend of RMB1.00 for every 10 shares (including tax), based on
the total share capital of 3,998,619,278 shares. Completion of the
proposal is subject to the consideration and approval by the 2015
Annual General Meeting. Please refer to the further announcement to
be issued by the Company for details on the closure of registers of
members in determining the shareholders who are eligible for the final
dividend.

ACcQUISITION AND CONSOLIDATION

In 2015, in order to further enhance the core competitiveness of the
Company and improve the level of its international operation, and in
view of the sound business performance of KION Group AG (“KION")
during the year, it was resolved by the Board of Directors that the
Company shall acquire approximately 4.95% of shares of KION held by
Superlift, pursuant to which our shareholding in KION increased from
33.3% to 38.25%, maintaining the Company’s status as the single
largest shareholder of KION.

QUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

Into 2016, the global economy will enter a stage of low growth and low
expansion, with weak recovery in developed economies and slowdown
in economic growth in emerging markets. Under a multitude of
uncertainties and trends including increase in interest rate by the Federal
Reserve of the United States, excessively high debt level around the
world, competitive exchange rate policies, decline in bulk commodity
prices and the highly politicized economic policies at home and abroad,
it is envisaged that the global economy will grow at around 3.4%.
Domestically, China will continue to grow under the “new norm” at
high-to-medium speed. The adverse effects of persistent economic
downturn and the core contradictions accumulated over the years will
become more apparent; however, the development potential of the
domestic market is still enormous from the perspective of the short-term
factors that drive economic growth. The further promotion of the
nation’s reform and opening will greatly mobilize and trigger the vigor
and motivation for social and economic development. New strategies for
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
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regional development including “One Belt and One Road”, the
coordinated development of Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei and the
development of Yangtze River Economic Zone will give rise to the
formation of new forces to drive development. Expedited efforts to
remove system-born obstacles in household registration, land and
education, and the fortified and steady progress of urbanization will
result in new consumption and investment demand. On such basis, it is
expected that China will grow at about 6.5-7.0% in 2016.

The Company is cautiously optimistic about the development trend of its
related industries. In 2016, it is expected that sales volume in China’s
heavy-duty truck market may remain flat or grow marginally and may
come under a trend where products tend to become more high-end,
highly standardized and high-powered. In the future, the heavy-duty
truck market of China will encounter three big challenges: Firstly,
changes in the sources of demand, including reduced demand for
vehicles in the construction industry, and the varied demand for vehicles
in the logistics industry as a result of industrial adjustments. Secondly,
changes in governing regulations, with more stringent emission
regulations and elevated efforts in enforcing regulations, which will give
rise to market fluctuations in the heavy-duty truck industry and in turn
drastically impact on annual sales volume of the heavy-duty truck
market. Thirdly, changes in the ways in which market players compete,
which may bring forth some new adjustments to the heavy-duty truck
industry.

In 2016, although the construction machinery industry will still be under
the difficult mission of decapacitizing and eliminating excessive
inventories, there are still a number of factors which favour industrial
development and accordingly a rebound in full-year sales volume is
anticipated. Firstly, for investments from the Chinese government, ample
room still exists for the construction of infrastructure, including express
railways, and urbanization construction. The pulling force of national
strategies including “One Belt and One Road” will bring forth
tremendous opportunities to players in the construction machinery
industry to explore international development and utilize the excessive
capacity available from their factories in China. Secondly, the more
stringent emission regulations applicable to the industry and expected
tightened schedule in implementing more stringent regulations for off-
road emission have posed new challenges to product upgrade and
technological innovations for engine manufacturers and will in turn
highlight the Company’s strengths in terms of its technological
attainments and product quality. Thirdly, policies in agricultural supply-
side structural reform and land circulation will drive the continual growth
of the agricultural machinery industry, which will demonstrate a trend
towards high-end and high-power development.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

With effect from 1 April 2016, China V Emission Standards will be
implemented on petrol-driven light vehicles, diesel-driven light passenger
vehicles and diesel-driven heavy-duty vehicles (for public transport,
hygiene and environment, and postal use only) in 11 eastern cities or
provinces including Beijing and Tianjin, and Off-road Phase Ill Emission
Standards will be implemented on off-road movable machinery (other
than agricultural machinery). As such, some segments of the market will
experience a new round of shuffling and the elimination of backward
production capacities shall be accelerated. Leveraging upon the synergy
presented by its globally coordinated R&D, advanced technology in smart
manufacturing, product and service diversity and its strong base of loyal
customers, the Company has actively responded by starting its
preparation work in advance. Having essentially completed the upgrade
and replacement of products of engines and heavy-duty trucks, the
Company is poised to maintain its leading position in the market of
high-power engines, heavy-duty gear boxes and complete heavy-duty
trucks. The Board has full confidence in the development prospect of the
Company.

In early 2016, through strategic decoding, the Company identified
thirteen battles that it must win and formulated detailed action plans,
covering various aspects including cost saving and efficiency
enhancement, market expansion, quality enhancement, technology R&D,
management innovation etc. In the year ahead, the Company will work
strenuously on the following:

Firstly, the Company will strengthen the development of its “Three Core
Competitiveness” in terms of cost, technology and quality, and
benchmark itself against leading international standards and continue to
uplift its competitive edge in terms of the distinctive reliability and
durability of its products. It will also keep on enhancing the profit model
of its products in active response to the trend of vertical integration of
the industry. Secondly, the Company will promote the establishment of
a target-oriented, innovative, and scientific management mechanism and
continually enhance internal innovation and aim at continually boosting
its strengths in product quality and performance. Thirdly, the Company
will remain committed to producing products of high quality. It will step
up the promotion of its strategic products and build up its strengths in
delivering a full range of comprehensive products, in turn achieving
substantial growth in its strategic products and strategic markets and
continually extending the scale of its business in the after-sale market.
Fourthly, the Company will continue to enhance its WOS management
operation system using new mindsets, new tools and new methods, and
actively engage in the development of smart manufacturing base
infrastructure, strenuously engage in organizational reforms and
enhancements, and continually uplift the operational efficiency of the

Iﬁﬂi (mE )

2016 F 4 A1HE bR RIEZ R
EMHEA T ME AL RE &
RMEHEEAR R  BHAR)F
WRMITEIVEE USRS  SEER BB (E
FA % 4 Bx H0) B 08 0 1T 3 8 BK 11 B BR HE
BEE-ZRFE FoBormERA
%%—%%ﬁ%*%&ﬁmnxﬁgﬁ
IR o KD AR 2 B R AT
FM TEMEERNERNT 22K
ERERE BETLANETP B R IR
AR/ EIREY  EATK T B # -
EFERMALBRIG REERD X
EEH ENERBENEREEMS G
BERIBAEL - EFTSHEARANKRK
BRAI=FTIME L

mwim'$“ BBEEBGRE BT

PWEITEROTZ58M WHE T
ﬁ%?@ﬁﬂ'WﬂT§M$iﬂ~ﬁ
SHE MERA R E EEE
FESEETE - -SF ARAHERM
LA Tk :

—RBAERA S K mE = ERO B
FHRER HBHER-RKF HER
HERASE MBINEZERLELEFES
Y TEHERECERBMER  BEEHT
¥EEEABE  _RHPIRVERS
MR XEHEERS  HERLLEE
Bl THRAERREMERES -
“RILEMES  MABEEmER
HWE TE2F) 28H9ERED
EREWEMMEBE TS REER T
B RMEEBRR - W2ERAHD
Mo TR A BETEWOSE
BEERBR HEREREEREEEMLE
RADFAREABRZEL TEHRA
DEEBTHE - A2E— &R
EBWMRAER RESEINTFRARERK
FomREINFETISREMOE B
@%%ﬁ%gﬁ%Fﬁﬁh? TR 2
BERBF - NERIL2EEXR 22X
BRiE 282HBERANIER A

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 £E#R 13



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

14

enterprise. Fifthly, the Company will further strengthen the coordinated
development of its domestic and foreign businesses, increase the level of
development of its subsidiaries overseas, step up its efforts in exploring
new overseas markets and establish a sound system of global sales and
services network, and actively participate in global competition. Sixthly,
the Company will further promote the concept of achieving cost
reduction along the entire industry chain, and throughout all business
processes and get all staff members involved. It will innovate upon new
thoughts and methods and further promote its work on cost saving and
efficiency enhancement. Meanwhile, the mechanism for narrowing and
stopping losses made for subsidiaries will be further improved, and loss-
making entities will gradually be eliminated. In our heavy-duty truck
segment, the R&D for new-generation heavy-duty truck products will
proceed steadily, and market promotion for specialized product series
will be fortified in depth and breadth. These aim at generating higher
sales volume in different segments of the domestic market, and
achieving breakthroughs in our six big overseas markets by taking a
“One Nation, One Policy” approach, thereby ensuring that the full-year
goal of sales volume can be achieved. Strategic direction “5221" will
guide gear box companies the way to promote structural adjustments,
transformation and upgrade, to develop the scope of application of
products primarily based upon gear transmission technology and to
speed up the development of systematic and module-based new product
platforms. Leveraging upon the availability of internal resources of the
Company, more efforts will be made on the R&D of AT/AMT smart
technology and transmission products for use in construction machinery.
We will make good use of the synergy among the component segment,
the engine segment and the complete vehicles segment.

At the same time, the Company will remain committed to its
development goal of “developing a full series and range of
comprehensive products and seeking to become the first in the world”.
Under the principle of “Unified Strategy, Independent Operation,
Resources Sharing”, we will accelerate the coordinated development
among the business segments of vehicles, construction machinery,
powertrains and automobile components, in order to fully utilize the
synergetic advantage of our resources in the domestic and overseas
companies, to continually enhance the quality and image of the
Company'’s development, and boost the overall capability to resist risks.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

V. APPRECIATION
Last but not least, | would like to express my sincere appreciation to all
our shareholders, the general public and our customers for their care
and support, as well as all of our staff for their hard work and dedication

in the past year!

Tan Xuguang
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Directors are pleased to present a management discussion and analysis of
the annual results of operations of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 as follows:

I. INDUSTRY ANALYSIS

The Company is one of the vehicle and equipment manufacturing
conglomerates in the PRC with the best comprehensive strengths. It is a
leading company in the markets of powertrain, complete vehicles and
machines, hydraulic controlling parts and automotive electronics parts
and components. It is equipped with the most comprehensive supply
chain of engines, gear boxes and axles and offers the related after-sales
market services.

1. Heavy-duty Vehicle Industry
During the year, the economy of China was stable and sustained
its high-to-medium speed growth. In 2015, the gross domestic
product of the PRC reached RMB67.67 trillion, representing a
year-on-year growth of 6.9%, which pace was nevertheless a
record low for the past 25 years. Factors including the weak
economy in general, suppressed export, excessive capacity and the
implementation of more stringent emission regulations
contributed to the sustained drop in sales volume in heavy-duty
truck market in the PRC. The aggregate sales figure of the heavy-
duty truck market in the year in the PRC was approximately
551,000 units, representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 25.9% from approximately 744,000 units last year.

2. Construction Machinery

During the reporting period, fixed-asset investments in the PRC
reached RMB55.2 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of
10.0%, a drop of approximately 5.7 percentage points in growth
rate compared with that in year 2014. In particular, investment in
real estate developments was approximately RMB9.6 trillion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 1.0%, a drop of
approximately 9.5 percentage points in growth rate year-on-year.
As such, the overall demand in the construction machinery
industry was weak, with severe drop in sales volume. In 2015, the
construction machinery market reported aggregate sales of
approximately 367,000 units, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 31.0%, and among which, the sales volume of wheel loaders
with a load capacity of 5 tonnes for use in large construction
machinery was approximately 42,000 units, representing a drop of
54.4% year-on-year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Passenger Vehicle Market

During the reporting period, under the influence of multiple
factors, including the accelerated urbanization, the nation’s
policies supporting new-energy vehicles and the increasingly
stringent emission regulations, some of the market segments of
China’s passenger vehicle industry achieved growth whilst others
reported decline. In 2015, the aggregate sales figure for passenger
vehicles in China was approximately 595,400 units (including
incomplete passenger vehicles), representing a year-on-year
decrease of 1.9%.

Forklift Truck Industry

During the reporting period, riding on low oil prices, the high level
of consumer spending in Western Europe and improvement in the
labour and housing markets in the United States, recovery in
Western Europe and the United States continued. Global sale
orders for forklift trucks increased to approximately 1.1 million
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units, rising by 1.0% from the corresponding period of last year. B EF1.0% -
II. THE GROUP’S BUSINESS - REBZER
An analysis of the Group'’s business segments is set out in Note XIV.2 to AEBEBOIB2OMEBEREHT K
the consolidated financial statements. The following is an overview of HFEMWTFTE - 2-REBTEERZ
the operating conditions of the major products of the Group: AR T

Sale of Diesel Engines

For use in Heavy-duty Trucks

The Group is the largest supplier of diesel engines among major
manufacturers of heavy-duty trucks with a load capacity of 15
tonnes (and above) in the PRC. In 2015, with the suppressed
demand in the domestic heavy-duty truck market and the trend of
vertical integration in the industry, the Company sold
approximately 118,000 units (2014: approximately 271,300 units)
of heavy-duty truck diesel engines, representing a decrease of
56.5% from the corresponding period in 2014. The Company
nevertheless maintained its leading position in the industry.

For use in Construction Machinery

The Group is also the largest supplier of diesel engines among
major manufacturers of construction machinery (mainly wheel
loaders) with a load capacity of 5 tonnes in the PRC. Out of the
diesel engines sold during the year, approximately 27,000 units
(2014: approximately 53,000 units) were engines for wheel
loaders with a load capacity of 5 tonnes, representing a decrease
of approximately 49.3% compared to that in the corresponding
period in 2014. The Group’s market share increased to more than
60.0%, maintaining its leading position in this sector.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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WEICHAI PowER Co., LTD.

For use in Passenger Vehicles

During the reporting period, whilst benefiting from the national
subsidy policy which applied to new-energy passenger vehicles,
with a share of the transportation market having been taken up
by China’s national express rail, and the increasingly stringent
supervision on passenger transportation, the highway passenger
transportation market did not perform well. In 2015, the
Company sold approximately 20,300 (2014: approximately
22,600) units of engines for use in passenger vehicles,
representing a decrease of approximately 10.2% year-on-year. The
Company’s market share in the market of large-sized and
medium-sized passenger vehicles was approximately 12.5%.

Forklift Trucks Production and Warehousing
Technology Services

Benefiting from the growth of the forklift truck industry and
KION’s “2020" strategy, KION achieved strong sales performance
in the European, North American and Asian markets. The Group
reported an increase of orders for forklift trucks to approximately
165,800 units in 2015, and achieved annual sales exceeding EUR5
billion for the first time. Before elimination of intra-group sales,
the forklift trucks production and warehousing technology services
business contributed sales revenue of approximately RMB35,488
million to the Group during this Year.

Sale of Heavy-duty Trucks
During the Year, the Group sold approximately 56,000 units of
heavy-duty trucks, representing a decrease of approximately
39.1% from approximately 92,000 units in the corresponding
period in 2014. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited (B&7G
BRREFRA
reported a sales figure which brought its ranking up to the fourth
in the domestic heavy-duty truck industry in the PRC. Before
elimination of intra-group sales, the truck business contributed
approximately RMB16,558 million to the Group's revenue this
Year.

7)), a controlling subsidiary of the Company,

Sale of Heavy-duty Gear Boxes

During the Year, the Group sold approximately 407,000 units of
heavy-duty gear boxes, representing a decrease of 34.4%
compared to approximately 620,000 units of heavy-duty gear
boxes sold in the corresponding period in 2014, maintaining its
leading position in the industry. Before elimination of intra-group
sales, the gear boxes business contributed approximately
RMB5,980 million to the Group's revenue this Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Sale of Parts and Components of Engine and Heavy-
duty Trucks and Hydraulics Controlling Parts

Apart from the production and sale of diesel engines for trucks
and construction machinery, heavy-duty trucks and heavy-duty
gear boxes, the Group is also engaged in the production and sales
of engine parts and components and other truck parts and
components such as spark plugs, axles, chassis, air-conditioner
compressors, hydraulic controlling parts etc. During this Year, the
Group's sales of parts and components of engines and trucks and
hydraulic controlling parts were approximately RMB3,524 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 9.2% or a
decrease of approximately RMB358 million, compared to the sales
revenue of RMB3,882 million in the corresponding period last
year.

Last year, the Company budgeted that sales revenue in 2015
would be approximately RMB101.6 billion, representing a growth
of approximately 27.6%. The actual sales revenue was
approximately RMB73.7 billion, representing a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 7.4%. Actual sales revenue fell far short
of the budgeted sales revenue by approximately RMB27.9 billion
or 27.5%. Overall performance was nevertheless stable. It was
mainly attributable to the weak market conditions in the heavy-
duty truck industry and the severe drop in the overall demand in
the construction machinery industry in the PRC. The Company has
an ongoing commitment to serving customer needs and creating
products with the “Three Core Competitiveness” in terms of cost,
technology and quality, to adjust strategic structure and push
ahead the progress of its international development, thus
increasing the Company’s risk-resistance capability.

Into 2016, the global economy is expected to enter a stage of low
growth. The heavy-duty truck market is anticipated to resume
growth in sales volume. The construction machinery sector will
benefit from the “One Belt and One Road” strategy and
government investment, infrastructure construction such as
urbanization construction and the national express rail, and a
rebound is anticipated. Leveraging upon the synergy presented by
its global development, advanced technology in smart
manufacturing, product and service diversity and strong base of
loyal customers, the Company will demonstrate increasing
competitive strengths in its products. As at 31 December 2015,
orders on hand amounted to approximately RMB7.2 billion. The
Company budgets a sales revenue of approximately RMB81.6
billion, representing an increase of approximately 10.7% for the
year of 2016, while the revenue contribution from KION is
budgeted at approximately RMB35 billion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

[II. FINANCIAL REVIEW
1. The Group’s Results of Operations

20

a.

WEICHAI PowER Co., LTD.

Revenue

The Group's revenue decreased from approximately
RMB79,637 million in the corresponding period in 2014 to
approximately RMB73,720 million in the Year, representing
a decrease of approximately 7.4%. In particular, the revenue
from principal operations decreased by approximately 6.7 %,
from approximately RMB77,321 million in the corresponding
period in 2014 to approximately RMB72,153 million in the
Year. This was primarily due to the substantial decrease in
the sales of the heavy-duty truck market and the vertical
integration of the industry in the PRC. Thanks to the growth
in the forklift truck industry, the strong growth of KION in
Western European, North American and Asian markets, the
Group sustained stable performance on the whole. Other
revenue amounted to approximately RMB1,567 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 32.3% from
approximately RMB2,316 million in the corresponding
period of 2014.

Profit from Principal Operations

During this Year, the Group generated profit from principal
operations in the amount of approximately RMB16,797
million, which stayed the same as approximately RMB16,767
million recorded in the corresponding period in 2014. The
Group's efforts in fostering international development,
innovating upon operations models and optimizing product
cost and quality effectiveness, have brought the profit
margin of principal operations to approximately 23.3%,
which was an increase of approximately 1.6 percentage
points from 21.7% recorded in the corresponding period in
2014.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses increased by approximately
22.6% to approximately RMB6,246 million this year from
approximately RMB5,093 million in the corresponding
period of 2014. The distribution and selling expenses as a
percentage of revenue increased from approximately 6.4%
in the corresponding period of 2014 to approximately 8.5%
in this year. It was mainly because the increase in the
proportion of KION's distribution and selling expenses led to
the increase in the overall distribution and selling expenses
for the year and KION had a higher figure in the ratio of the
distribution and selling expense as a percentage of revenue
that contributed to the increase in the overall distribution
and selling expenses percentage.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses of the Group increased
by approximately 11.6% or approximately RMB747 million
from approximately RMB6,427 million in the corresponding
period in 2014 to approximately RMB7,174 million this year.
The increase was mainly due to the percentage increase in
the general and administrative expenses attributable to
overseas subsidiaries under the expedited integration and
coordinated development of overseas businesses in the
course of our international development.

Operating Profit before Finance Expenses
During this Year, the Group’s operating profit before
finance expenses decreased by approximately RMB3,452
million or 53.0% to approximately RMB3,064 million this
year from approximately RMB6,516 million in the
corresponding period in 2014. It was primarily attributable
to the substantial decrease in the sales of heavy-duty truck
market in the PRC, the suppressed operating profit in the
PRC under the increase in per-unit costs, the percentage
increase in expenses incurred by overseas subsidiaries and
the one-off gain of approximately RMB1,622 million in the
acquisition of KION during the previous year. The Group's
operating margin dropped to approximately 4.2% from
approximately 8.2% for the corresponding period of 2014.

Finance Expenses

Finance expenses increased from approximately RMB23
million in the corresponding period in 2014 to
approximately RMB486 million this year. This change was
mainly attributable to the increase in interest expenses and
decrease in foreign exchange gain. The Group's issue of
bonds of USD400 million for a term of five years in
September 2015 and KION's completion of its refinancing
arrangements in February 2016 are expected to effectively
cut down interest expenses.
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Income Tax Expenses

The Group's income tax expenses decreased by
approximately 19.9% from approximately RMB1,150 million
in the corresponding period in 2014 to approximately
RMB921 million in the year. The Group's average effective
tax rate was approximately 29.9%, compared to
approximately 16.7% in the corresponding period in 2014.
The increase in effective tax rate was mainly due to the one-
off gain arising from the consolidation of KION during the
previous year.

Net Profit and Net Profit Margin

The Group’s net profit for this year decreased by
approximately 62.2% from approximately RMB5,718 million
in the corresponding period of 2014 to approximately
RMB2,163 million this year. During this Year, the net profit
margin was approximately 2.9%, representing a decrease of
approximately 4.3 percentage points from approximately
7.2% recorded in the corresponding period in 2014. This
was primarily attributable to the substantial decrease in the
sales of heavy-duty truck market in the PRC, the suppressed
operating profit, the percentage increase in expenses
incurred by overseas subsidiaries and the one-off gain in the
acquisition of KION during the previous year.

Liquidity and Cash Flow

During this Year, the Group generated cash flow from
operating activities of approximately RMB6,774 million. A
portion of such proceeds was applied as investment monies
for acquiring 4,900,000 KION shares, repaying borrowings,
paying interest and acquiring property, plant and equipment
for the expansion of the Group’s business. As at 31
December 2015, the Group had a net cash (cash and cash
equivalents net of interest-bearing debts) of approximately
RMB2,130 million (31 December 2014: net cash (cash and
cash equivalents net of interest-bearing debts) of
approximately RMB1,877 million). Based on the calculation
above, the debt to equity ratio was not applicable to the
Group as the Group was in a net cash position (as at 31
December 2014: N/A).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

2.

Financial Position

a.

Assets and Liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total assets of
approximately RMB 114,873 million, of which approximately
RMB57,753 million were current assets. As at 31 December
2015, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB24,601 million (as at 31 December 2014:
RMB24,434 million). On the same date, the Group’s total
liabilities was approximately RMB73,147 million, of which
approximately RMB39,870 million were current liabilities.
The current ratio was approximately 1.45x (as at 31
December 2014: 1.34x).

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total equity of
approximately RMB41,726 million, of which approximately
RMB31,729 million was attributable to equity holders of the
Company and the balance was minority interests. The Group
currently does not rely heavily on borrowings. The
borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2015
amounted to approximately RMB18,884 million, which
included bonds of approximately RMB8,183 million and
bank borrowings of approximately RMB10,701 million.
Borrowings repayable on demand or within a period not
exceeding one year were RMB5,615 million, borrowings
repayable within a period of more than one year but not
exceeding two years were RMB1,527 million; borrowings
repayable within a period of more than two years but not
exceeding five years were RMB9,447 million; and
borrowings repayable within a period of more that 5 years
were RMB2,295 million. The bank borrowings included
approximately RMB1,737 million of fixed interest rate bank
borrowings and approximately RMB8,964 million of floating
interest rate bank borrowings. Other than Euro-
denominated borrowings and USD-denominated borrowings
equivalent to approximately RMB12,460 million and
RMB2,594 million respectively, the borrowings are
Renminbi-denominated borrowings. The revenue of the
Group is mainly in Renminbi and Euro. To prevent exchange
rate risk arising from the fluctuation of the USD exchange
rate, contracts have been entered into with financial
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institutions to swap the USD-denominated bonds issued in
September 2015 to Euro, and the Group does not consider
its currency risk significant. As a policy, the Group manages
its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximizing the return to
shareholders through improving the debts and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
compared to prior years.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2015, bank deposits, notes receivable
and accounts receivable of approximately RMB7,724 million
(as at 31 December 2014: approximately RMB12,276
million) were pledged to banks to secure the Group’s notes
payable and notes receivable issued by banks. The pledged
bank deposits carry prevailing bank interest rates. The
pledge will be released upon the settlement of the relevant
bank borrowings. The fair value of the bank deposits as at
the settlement date is approximately the same as the
carrying amount. Certain other assets were also pledged by
the Group to secure the Group's borrowings.

Contingencies

On 31 December 2015, the Group provided to certain
distributors and agents bank guarantee amounting to
approximately RMB1,014 million (as at 31 December 2014:
approximately RMB812 million) to secure their obtaining
and use of banking facilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

On 31 December 2015, the Group guaranteed repurchase
of physical assets upon presentation in respect of the failure
of the lessee under finance lease to settle instalment
payments plus interest. Outstanding balance of principal on
finance lease borrowings which were not yet due amounted
to approximately RMB728 million (as at 31 December 2014:
approximately RMB1,142 million).

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s borrowings and other
guarantee amounted to approximately RMB215 million (as
at 31 December 2014: approximately RMB199 million).

Commitments

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had capital
commitments of approximately RMB1,734 million (as at 31
December 2014: approximately RMB2,120 million), among
which contracted capital commitments amounted to
approximately RMB1,734 million, principally for the capital
expenditure in respect of acquisition of property, plant and
equipment. The capital expenditure will be financed by
internal resources.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no material
investment commitments.

3. Other Financial Information

a.

Employees

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had approximately
66,000 employees (including approximately 23,500
employees of KION). During this year, the Group had paid
remuneration of approximately RMB14,115 million. The
emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their
merits, qualifications and competence.
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During the Year, the Group’s staff training focused on
leadership training for newly-appointed management staff
members, competence enhancement for existing
management staff members, training of marketing staff
members and training of technicians. The Group spent
approximately RMB17 million on the provision of trainings,
including approximately 1,700 sessions of trainings at
various levels.

Major Investment

During the Year, Weichai Power (Luxembourg) Holding
S.a r.l. ("Weichai Lux”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, acquired 4,900,000 KION shares, representing
4.95% of the issued share capital of KION, from Superlift
Holding, S.a r.l. (“Superlift”) at a total consideration of
EUR186,935,000 or EUR38.15 per KION share. The Group's
shareholding in KION has increased from 33.3% to 38.25%,
further consolidating the Company’s control over KION,
which is in line with the Company's strategy of further
enhancing the strategic alliance with KION and optimising
the allocation of the Group's assets.

Major Acquisition and Disposal

On 7 May 2015, KION Group AG (“KION"), a subsidiary of
the Company, signed an agreement with the Belgium-based
Egemin Group to purchase its Handling Automation division.
On 7 August 2015, KION completed the acquisition of
100% interest in Egemin Automation Inc. at a consideration
of EUR72,483,000.00, equivalent to RMB485,759,321.10.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other
major acquisition or disposal during the Year.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

(1) DIRECTORS

Mr. Tan Xuguang, Chinese, aged 54, is the chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, chairman of Shandong Heavy Industry
Group Co., Ltd. and chairman of Weichai Group Holdings Limited (which
holds A Shares of the Company with details as set out below and is thus
interested in shares of the Company under Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance). He is also the chairman of Shaanxi Heavy-duty
Motor Company Limited and Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd., and the
supervisor of KION Group AG. Mr. Tan joined Weifang Diesel Engine
Factory in 1977 and had held various positions including chairman and
general manager of Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co., Ltd.,
general manager of Weifang Diesel Engine Factory, chairman of Torch
Automobile Group Co., Ltd., chairman of Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
Co., Ltd. and director of Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd. Mr. Tan is a senior
economist and holds a doctor’'s degree in engineering. Mr. Tan was
appointed as a Representative of the Tenth, Eleventh and Twelfth
National People’s Congress of the PRC and was honored “National Labor
Model”, "FMEREEREEESE" (the Gold Award of the 4th
Yuan Baohua Enterprise Management), “CCTV 2005 China Economic
Annual Figure” and “CCTV 2010 China Economic Annual Figure”.

Mr. Zhang Quan, Chinese, aged 52, is an Executive Director and
Executive President of the Company. Mr. Zhang joined Weifang Diesel
Engine Factory in 1986 and had held the positions of directors of the
quality control department and the marketing department of Weifang
Diesel Engine Factory. Mr. Zhang is currently a director of Weichai Group
Holdings Limited, Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd. and Beiqi
Foton Motor Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhang is a senior economist and holds a
bachelor’s degree in engineering and a MBA degree.

Mr. Xu Xinyu, Chinese, aged 52, is an Executive Director and Executive
President of the Company. Mr. Xu joined Weifang Diesel Engine Factory
in 1986 and had held the positions of deputy general manager of
Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co., Ltd., deputy general manager
and executive deputy general manager of Weifang Diesel Engine Factory,
director of Torch Automobile Group Co., Ltd., chairman of Weichai
Power (Weifang) Investment Co., Ltd., chairman of Weichai Power
(Shanghai) Technology Development Co., Ltd., chairman of Weichai
Power (Beijing) International Resource Investment Co., Ltd. and chairman
of Weichai America Corp. Mr. Xu is currently a director of Weichai
Group Holdings Limited, director of Weichai Power (Hong Kong)
International Development Co., Ltd., chairman of Weichai Power
(Luxembourg) Holding S.a r.l. and director of Ferretti International
Holding S.p.A. Mr. Xu is a senior economist and holds a bachelor’s
degree in science and a MBA degree.
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Mr. Li Dakai, Chinese, aged 62, is an Executive Director and Executive
President of the Company. Mr. Li had held various positions including
director of product design department, chief economist, general
manager of Shaanxi Auto Gear General Works, director and vice
president of Torch Automobile Group Co., Ltd., director and general
manager of Shaanxi Fast Gear Co. Ltd., and chairman and party
committee secretary of Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission Co.,
Ltd. He currently holds the positions of vice chairman of Shaanxi Fast
Gear Co., Ltd. Mr. Li holds a bachelor’'s degree and is a senior engineer
with researcher-grade treatment. He was honored “National Labor
Model” and entitled specialist who can receive special allowance from
the State Council. Mr. Li was appointed as a Representative of the
Eleventh National People’s Congress of the PRC and member of the
Standing Committee of Xi‘an Municipal People’s Congress.

Mr. Sun Shaojun, Chinese, aged 50, is an Executive Director and
Executive President of the Company. Mr. Sun joined Weifang Diesel
Engine Factory in 1988 and had held the positions of supervisor of the
engineering department, the chief engineer of Weifang Diesel Engine
Factory, and director of Torch Automobile Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Sun is
currently a director of Weichai Group Holdings Limited and Weichai
Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd. Mr. Sun is a researcher-grade senior
engineer and holds a doctor degree in engineering. He was appointed as
"INEEARBMNZELUSEFIEER" (Taishan Mountain scholar
specialist appointed by Shandong People’s Government).

Mr. Wang Yuepu, Chinese, aged 53, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on 30 June 2014. Mr. Wang was a division
head of the investment division of Weifang City Planning Commission
(#trmst2l£ Eg), a deputy director of the Weifang City Electric
Power Construction Office (#hTE NEZITAZE) and a deputy
general manager of Weifang Investment Company. Mr. Wang is
presently the party committee secretary, chairman and general manager
of Weifang Investment Company and a director of Weichai Heavy-duty
Machinery Co., Ltd.. He is a senior economist and holds a Master of
Business Administration degree.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Jiang Kui, Chinese, aged 51, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 29 June 2012. He had held various
positions including engineer and deputy general manager of Assembly
Department of Shandong Bulldozer General Factory (1L/EHE+1#4&R),
deputy general manager of Shantui Import and Export Company (1L 3
H AA7]), deputy director, director of manufacturing department,
deputy general manager and director of Shantui Engineering Machinery
Co., Ltd. (ILHETIEHMAR D EMR A R]), deputy general manager of
Shandong Engineering Machinery Group Co., Ltd. ((LER T2 EE A
[R/27]), executive deputy general manager and vice chairman of
Weichai Group Holdings Limited, chairman of Shanzhong Jianji Co., Ltd.
and director of Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. He is now the
general manager of Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd., and
supervisor of KION Group AG. He is a senior engineer and holds a MBA
degree.

Mr. Gordon Riske, American/German, aged 58, was appointed as a
Non-executive Director of the Company on 24 June 2013. He has been
chief executive officer of KUKA Roboter GmbH, chairman of Deutz AG
in Cologne, Germany. He is currently the chief executive officer of KION
Group AG, KION Material Handling GmbH, Linda Material Handling
GmbH and STILL GmbH. He holds a degree in electronic engineering and
a bachelor degree in business administration.
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Mr. Loh Yih, Singaporean, aged 51, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 29 June 2012. He worked in
Ernst & Young and West Merchant Bank and had held various positions
including senior manager of capital market investment department of
the Standard Chartered Merchant Bank, president of Netplus
Communications Pte Ltd. He is currently a partner of MGF Capital
Group, executive chairman of Acesian Partners Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Singapore Exchange, an independent
director and chairman of audit committee of Ban Leong Technologies
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Singapore Exchange,
and an independent director and member of audit committee of
International Press Softcom Limited, a company whose shares are listed
on the Singapore Exchange. He is a Chartered Financial Analyst and
holds an accounting degree from the National University of Singapore.

Mr. Zhang Zhenhua, Chinese, aged 73, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 29 June 2012.
He had held various positions including chief engineer of [k 7g /5 & &I
%5 B (Shaanxi Automobile Manufactory), deputy chief engineer of A

B A5 E £ B A A (China National Heavy Duty Truck Group Corp.
Ltd.), supervisor of technical centre and technical department manager
of Fi§ /558 T % (% @) R 7 (Shanghai Automotive Industrial (Group)
Company), general manager (Chlnese Representative) of & 35 /4 B #% i
F AR A A (Pan Asia Technical Automotive Centre Co. Ltd),
consultant of Lmiﬁﬁi& fiT 71 0y (Shanghai Automotive Passenger
Car Technical Centre) and a consultant of commercial vehicle
department and consultant of technical centre of SAIC, etc. He
graduated from Tsinghua University with a degree majoring in
automotive. He is a professor engineer, and a professor and master tutor
of University of Shanghai for Science & Technology.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Zhang Zhong, Chinese, aged 47, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 30 June 2014. Mr. Zhang
held independent directorships in Huolinhe Opencut Coal Industry
Corporation Limited of Inner Mongolia (N5 & B 5B X EZERD AR
A7), Zhengzhou Sino-Crystal Diamond Co., Ltd. (ZB)N2E &SR ARG
AMRATF) and Konka Group Co., Ltd. (EEEBERMHBERAT). At
present, Mr. Zhang is a lawyer and partner of Beijing Zhonglun Law Firm
(bR R EMMEFT). Mr. Zhang is an independent director of Jilin
Gpro Titanium Industry Co., Ltd. (F#M& AR HD B R A F]). He holds
a Master of Laws from the Renmin University of China (FF B A R KE2).

Mr. Wang Gongyong, Chinese, aged 43, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 30 June 2014.
Mr. Wang is currently a partner of ShineWing Certified Public
Accountants. He is also an independent director of Sunvim Group Co.,
Ltd. (2 B EBE D AR R F)). He is a certified public accountant of
the PRC, a certified asset valuer, a senior auditor, a senior accountant, a
member of the Certified Public Accountant Industry Leader (Reserve)
Scheme. Mr. Wang holds a Master of Business Administration from the
Shandong University (1Ll E X £). He is a collaborative tutor for
graduate courses leading to professional degrees at Shandong University
and a fellow member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. Ning Xiangdong, Chinese, aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 30 June 2014.
Mr. Ning held independent directorships in listed companies, such as
Datang Telecom Technology Co., Ltd. (KEBERHERMHERAR),
Shantui Engineering Machinery Co., Ltd. (IL#E TI2#MIZD B R A 7)),
GoerTek Inc. BB ERRH AR AR and Hong Yuan Securities Co.,
Ltd. (RRZEHMHBRAF) Mr. Ning is currently a professor and
doctorial tutor of the Tsinghua University School of Economics and
Management (5% KSE4CEEEZM) and a director of the Corporate
Governance Research Center of Tsinghua University (/&% KE2Q a4
FTAL). Mr. Ning is currently a director of China Southern Airlines
Company Limited (FEEHFMERMDBRAF]), Aerospace Hi-Tech
Holding Group Co., Ltd. (fiREHZIERREERRD AR AF]), Sichuan
Changhong Electric Co., Ltd. (P0)I|RIL EEERH B AF) and Yango
Group Co., Ltd. CEXIHEBKMDBER A F]). He holds a Doctor of
Philosophy in Economics from Tsinghua University.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(2) SUPERVISORS

32

Mr. Lu Wenwu, Chinese, aged 51, is the chairman of the supervisory
committee of the Company. Mr. Lu joined Weichai Diesel Engine Factory
in 1982 and had held various positions at Weichai Diesel Engine Factory
as deputy general manager of the 615 Factory and deputy general
manager of the mid-speed engine factory, deputy director of the human
resources department, and at Weichai Power Co., Ltd. as general
manager of the 615 Factory, general manager of No. 1 Factory and
director of the production department. He is now chairman of the Labor
Union and director of the party committee working department of the
Company, and director of staff career development centre of the
Company. He is also a supervisor of Weichai Group Holdings Limited.
Mr. Lu is a senior political engineer and holds a bachelor’s degree.

Ms. Jiang Jianfang, Chinese, aged 53, is a Supervisor of the Company.
She was the deputy chief of the financial audit committee, deputy
director of risk control department and deputy director of audit
department of EFEHIIEBABR AR (Guangxi Liugong Group
Company Limited), and a supervisor of EFU T#EWIMNDEIR A E]
(Guangxi Liugong Machinery Company Limited) and is currently the
deputy director of audit and risk control department of Guangxi Liugong
Group Company Limited. Ms. Jiang is an accountant.

Mr. Ma Changhai, Chinese, aged 41, is a Supervisor of the Company.
Mr. Ma joined Weifang Diesel Engine Factory in 1997. He had been the
deputy manager at administration department and an officer at the
administrative office of external affairs of Shandong Weichai Import and
Export Co., Ltd.. He is currently the administrative officer of the
Company, the deputy administrative officer at its Hong Kong office, a
director of Weichai Power (Hong Kong) International Development Co.,
Ltd., a director of Weichai International (Hong Kong) Energy Group Co.,
Ltd., and a director of Weichai Power (Beijing) International Resource
Investment Co., Ltd.. He is a political engineer and holds a bachelor’s
degree.
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DIRECTORS,

SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(3) SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Dai Lixin, Chinese, aged 48, is a Vice President of the Company,
the Secretary to the Board and Director of Securities and Capital
Operation Department of the Company. He joined Weifang Diesel
Engine Factory in 1987 and was the deputy director of the treasury
department of Weifang Diesel Engine Factory. Mr. Dai is an economist
and holds a bachelor’s degree.

Mr. Kwong Kwan Tong, Chinese, aged 49, is the Chief Financial
Officer, Company Secretary and Authorised Representative of the
Company and director of Weichai International (Hong Kong) Energy
Group Co., Ltd.. Mr. Kwong joined the Company in 2013. Mr. Kwong
obtained a diploma in accountancy from the Morrison Hill Technical
Institute in Hong Kong in 1987. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants. He has worked for companies
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and has over 25
years’ experience in the accounting and financial management fields.

Mr. Feng Gang, Chinese, aged 51, is a Vice President of the Company.
He was manager of technology service department, assistant to general
manager and executive deputy general manager of sales department of
the head office and executive deputy director of marketing management
department of Weifang Diesel Engine Factory. He is an engineer and
holds a bachelor’s degree in engineering.

Mr. Tong Dehui, Chinese, aged 51,
Chief Engineer of the Company. He was the assistant supervisor and

is a Vice President and Deputy

supervisor of the laboratory of technology centre of Weifang Diesel
Engine Factory. Mr. Tong is a research-grade senior engineer and holds a
doctor’s degree in engineering and was appointed as [ E& A RBF
FRIIEBEFIEHEZK" (Taishan Mountain scholar specialist appointed by
Shandong People’s Government).

Mr. Zhou Chongyi, is a Vice President of the
Company and the director of the Company’s Shanghai R&D Centre. He
is also the deputy general manager of Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co.,
Ltd. He was the deputy supervisor of engineering department, deputy
chief engineer of China National Heavy Duty Truck Group Corp, Ltd. and

Chinese, aged 51,

deputy chief engineer of Shanghai Huizhong Automobile Manufacturing
Co. Ltd. Mr. Zhou is a senior engineer and holds an EMBA.
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Mr. Li Shaohua, Chinese, aged 50, is a Vice President of the Company.
Mr. Li joined the Company in 1987 and had held various positions
including the deputy general manager of the marketing department of
the head office, director of application engineering department and
assistant to president. He is a senior engineer and holds a bachelor’s
degree in engineering.

Ms. Ren Bingbing, Chinese, aged 50, is a Vice President of the
Company. Ms. Ren joined the Company in 1987 and had held various
positions including the deputy general manager of procurement
management department and assistant to president of the Company.
She is a senior economist and a graduate student in economics.

Mr. Ding Yingdong, Chinese, aged 47, is a Vice President of the
Company. Mr. Ding joined Weifang Diesel Engine Factory in 1990 and
had held various positions including deputy director of corporate
planning department and director of human resources department of
Weifang Diesel Engine Factory, director of human resources and
corporate management department, assistant to president, director of
the operational management department and a supervisor of the
Company. Mr. Ding is a senior economist and holds the qualification of
senior manager of corporate human resources and a bachelor’s degree
in engineering.

Mr. Hu Haoyan, American, aged 60, is a vice president of the
Company. Mr. Hu joined the Company in 2014. He has been an adjunct
assistant professor at Ohio State University, a senior engineer,
engineering manager, senior engineering manager at Jacobs Vehicle
Systems, Inc., senior engineering manager at Detroit Diesel Corporation,
an engineering manager at Caterpillar, chief scientist at Eaton
Corporation plc. He holds a doctoral degree granted by the Department
of Mechanical Engineering at Massachusetts Institute of Technology
(MIT) and is a post-doctoral researcher at the same department.

Mr. Zhang Jiyuan, Chinese, aged 51, is a vice president of the
Company. He joined the Company in 1990 and held various positions
including the deputy director and chief designer of the technology
centre of the Company. He is a researcher in engineering technology
application and holds a master’s degree in engineering.

WEICHAI POWER Co., LTD. HLahhiRMNDBERLAD

ES ESERSRERAS (@)

ZRELRE PEE 505 AR A&
BEIGTEZ NI BFITEHEAR
RlEBEE ERAIRBITIBE BEY
BEW m@RIREmMm T88L-

EkkL L PEFE 505 ARAE
WE1TE2 NI FERBERE
HEALE RAARPESE s&
KBRS BIERAE

TRREE hREFE 475 K2FE
BE 1990 F M A KD SRR B AE
B mAEREIABIEE S AN
BERMEHBER RRAIANEREDZE
EEANSNE AHEERELEEIDHM
R ESTR SAKEM sMEE
ANEREEMBEER T28+ -

WERELE ZHE 605 AR A E
BEG R204FMALRRA: BEAEER
BEBMNIRETEDERR  HZH
HEREAGAA SR ITREM TREL
B SR IRLE KEeEHEAR
BRIRLEE FEFEHRAIRERE
B EREFBERAAERFRER: XBM
ERTITERMIMERRELHITE B
T

RAETEE PEHE 515 ARQAE
ME G 190FE2 MI e BEARRQ TR
TR LB EF BREBTAER: T2
EMERAMREE  T8HELT-



DIRECTORS” REPORT

The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group is the manufacture and sale of diesel
engines and related parts, automobiles and other major automobile
components, auxiliary automobile components, import and export services and
forklift trucks and warehouses technology services. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in Note VII to
the financial statement.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 96 to 351. The Board recommended the
distribution to all shareholders of a cash dividend of RMB1.00 (including tax)
for every 10 shares held, for the year ended 31 December 2015. No
capitalisation of reserve will be implemented. This recommendation has been
disclosed as a subsequent event after the reporting period on page 314 in the
financial statements.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and minority interests
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on
page 352. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in Note V.16 to the financial
statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group during the
year are set out in Note V.15 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in Note V.43 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in Notes V.44 to 48 to the financial statements and in the
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserve available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the relevant regulations, amounted to
RMB24,023,621,526.87. As approved by the Board on 30 March 2016, the
Company proposed to distribute to all shareholders of a cash dividend of
RMB1.00 (including tax) for every 10 shares held.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totaling
approximately RMB2,094,300.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Tan Xuguang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Zhang Quan (Executive President)

Xu Xinyu (Executive President)

Li Dakai (Executive President)

Sun Shaojun (Executive President)

Fang Hongwei (Executive President) (resigned on 6 July 2015)

Non-executive Directors

Wang Yuepu

Jiang Kui

Gordon Riske

Julius G. Kiss (retired on 30 June 2015)

Han Xiaoqun (retired on 30 June 2015)
Yeung Sai Hong (resigned on 6 July 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Loh Yih

Zhang Zhenhua

Zhang Zhong

Wang Gongyong

Ning Xiangdong

Chu, Howard Ho Hwa (retired on 30 June 2015)

SUPERVISORS

Lu Wenwu

Jiang Jianfang

Ma Changhai (appointed on 30 June 2015)
Sun Chengping (retired on 30 June 2015)

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), and as at the date of this report, the
Company still considers that all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 27 to 34 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company and their relevant term of offices shall be from 30 June 2015 to the
conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company for the year ending
31 December 2017. Each of the non-executive directors, independent non-
executive directors and supervisors was appointed for a term from 30 June
2015 to the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company for the
year ending 31 December 2017.

None of the above directors and supervisors has entered into a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without the payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Mr. Gordon Riske holds interest in KION and was interested in contracts for
the sale of commodities, provision of product testing, casting, catering and
leasing services by Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG, a subsidiary of the
Group, to KION and its subsidiaries, and in contracts for the provision of
information technology services, accounting, human resources, logistics
services etc. by KION and its subsidiaries to Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG.
Save as disclosed above, no director or supervisor had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short position (if any) of the
directors, the chief executives and the supervisors in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")),
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

(@) Interests in the shares of the Company
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Percentage of

the issued

share capital

Number of Number of of the

Name of director Capacity “A" shares held ~ “H" shares held Company

AR R

ERTRA

BEEpns 2% FiisAREE FresHRR & B Bol

Tan Xuguang Beneficial owner 29,421,298 (Note 1) - 0.74%
EEk BEREEA (Hfat1)

Zhang Quan Beneficial owner 6,842,162 (Note 1) - 0.17%
KR ExBAA (Hfat1)

Xu Xinyu Beneficial owner 6,842,162 (Note 1) - 0.17%
"I E ExBAA (Hfat1)

Sun Shaojun Beneficial owner 6,842,162 (Note 1) - 0.17%
#OE EREEA (Hfat1)

Percentage of

the issued

share capital

Number of Number of of the

Name of supervisor Capacity “A" shares held  “H" shares held Company

AR

BRITRA

EEfR 5 4 FiisARHE FreEHR & B Bt

Lu Wenwu Beneficial owner 300,000 - 0.008%

BXH EnEBEA
Notes: //zﬁﬁ .
1. These shares were derived from the previous domestic shares of the Company. 1. ZERDZHRARFIARK - AE KB

The domestic shares were ordinary shares issued by the Company, with a
Renminbi denominated par value of RMB1.00 each, which were subscribed for
and paid up in Renminbi or credited as fully paid up. These shares became A
Shares of the Company upon the A Share listing of the Company on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

2. All the shareholding interests listed in the above table are “long” position.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

(b)

40

Interests in the shares of associated corporations of the

(b)

RAXTHEEEERGHES

Company
Approximate
Class and percentage
number of interest in the
securities entire issued
interested or share capital
Name of associated deemed to be of associated
Name of director corporation Nature of interest interested corporations
BEERR EHEEER
REARSE 2IE BT
ERNES BR A B BE &
BEEHS 10 B E B = B EEMEE HrlRHE BRABEDL
Gordon Riske (Note) KION Group AG (“KION") Beneficial owner 227,350 0.23%
Gordon Riske (4 i) EmEA A ordinary shares
227,350 % & i@ A%
Interest held by spouse 3,000 0.003%

A B A M s

Note: Gordon Riske, a non-executive Director, was the beneficial owner of 227,350
shares in KION and he was also deemed to be interested in 3,000 shares in KION

which were beneficially held by his wife, Ms. Benita Riske.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors,
the chief executives nor the supervisors had an interest or short position

in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations that was recorded in the register required to
be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to

the Company pursuant to the Model Code.

WEICHAI POWER Co., LTD. HLahhiRMNDBERLAD
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Benita Riske 2 1 & & 1% /A £93,000 BX KION
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DETAILS OF CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL AND

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'

0)

Changes in share capital

SHAREHOLDINGS

1. Changes in share capital (as at 31 December 2015)

Before the movement

AREEH

No. of
shares

L

Percentage
b7
(%)

ESEHRS ()

RARZFMMESRREREBMN

0)

BRAZEBER

REEDERK(NEF
—HmEF=A=+—A)

Increase/decrease in the movement (+, -)

AREBRHE (+-)

New shares
issued

SR

Bonus
Issue

3

Transfer of
surplus
to capital

REER

Restriction
lifted Sub-total
BRRE Nt

After the movement
TREBE

No. of
shares

8

Percentage
th
(%)

Restricted circulating shares

BRERHER

1.

State-owned shares

BRRR

State-owned legal person shares
BREAAR

Shares held by other domestic
entities

Afp sk

including: Shares held by domestic
non-state-owned legal persons
B BRAEREARR
Shares held by domestic natural
persons

Enanr sk

Shares held by foreign entities
HEnk

including: Shares held by overseas
legal persons

AR AR

Shares held by overseas natural
persons

BIERARR

Non-restricted circulating shares

ERERHER

1.

RMB ordinary shares
NREERR

Dornestic listed foreign shares
BA ETESNER

Overseas lsted foreign shares
SO ETEOSNER

Others

At

Total number of shares

Rireg

467,464,752

410,632,752

56,832,000

56,832,000

1,531,844,887

1,046,084,887

485,760,000

1,999,309,639

23.38%

20.54%

2.84%

2.84%

76.62%

52.32%

2430%

100%

467,464,752

410,632,752

56,832,000

56,832,000

1531,844,887

1,046,084,887

485,760,000

1,999,309,639

- 467464752

- 410632752

- 56,832,000

- 56,832,000

- 1531844887

- 1,046,084,887

- 485,760,000

- 1,999,309,639

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F#R

934,929,504

821,265,504

113,664,000

113,664,000

3,063,689,774

2,092,169,774

971,520,000

3,998,619,278

23.38%

20.54%

2.84%

2.84%

76.62%

52.32%

24.30%

100%
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Shareholdings of the Substantial Shareholders (as at 31

December 2015)

Total number of Shareholders

The number of shareholders is
174,363 among which 174,087 are
shareholders of “A" shares and
276 are shareholders of “H”

shares.

Shareholdings of the top ten shareholders

ESEHS (88

m EERRFREBR R

+t=ZRA=+—-H)

IR BB

—=-F

=< E'E

H174363F  EAFAAR K E

174,087 F * HIE R 276 F ©

Bl 105 R &R #5 IR 18 2

Number of
Approximate Total Number of shares
percentage of number of restricted pledged
Name of shareholder Type of Shareholder shares held shares held shares held or frozen
FREL EREGH ERGRE
BRREH REME Bl FRAY ROBE HROHE
(%)
HKSCC Nominees Limited Foreign shareholder 24.23% 968,690,428 - N/A
ERRREERBAERAR HERR A
Weichai Group Holdings Limited State-owned legal person 16.83% 672,952,800 672,952,800 -
HREREEBER AT BBZEA
Weifang Investment Company State-owned legal person 3.71% 148,312,704 148,312,704 -
G TREQR BAEA
China Securities Finance Corporation Limited ~ Domestic non-state-owned 2.99% 119,560,506 - -
REESERBRNHAERAA legal person
BREBEFEA
Hong Zejun Domestic natural person 2.00% 80,000,000 - -
HEE BERERA
IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft ~ Overseas legal person 1.98% 79,200,000 - -
m.b.H. BMEA
BIAIVME B A R RERA A
Peterson Holdings Company Limited Overseas legal person 1.66% 66,389,564 - -
EHERERAA BINEA
Central Huijin Assets Management Domestic non-state-owned 1.36% 54,246,400 - -
Company Limited legal person
FRESEEEREREERA BNEREEA
Shenzhen Capital Group Co., Ltd Domestic non-state-owned 1.33% 53,253,824 - -
RITEIFREEEBR LA legal person
BRFEBRAEA
Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Domestic non-state-owned 1.06% 42,460,000 - -
Company Limited legal person
LWRECETELERNDERD A BRIEBEEA

WEICHAI PowER Co., LTD.
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Shareholdings of the top ten non-restricted shareholders

ESEHRS ()

Number of the
non-restricted

AT 105 IR & 1% 1R R F5 1K 167

Name of shareholder shares held Types of shares
HEEREGRYE

KRR E B BROHE RoOEE
HKSCC Nominees Limited 968,690,428 Overseas listed foreign shares
BEEPREHEAREBEABRAF BN EWHNE IR
China Securities Finance Corporation Limited 119,560,506 RMB ordinary shares
FEE S SRR AR A AR L @R
Hong Zejun 80,000,000 RMB ordinary shares
HEE AR L @R
IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H. 79,200,000 RMB ordinary shares
B FIVM B M55 AL B R A7) AR L E R
Peterson Holdings Company Limited 66,389,564 RMB ordinary shares
BHERERRAA] AR L @R
Central Huijin Assets Management Company Limited 54,246,400 RMB ordinary shares
FRESEEEEBRAETAA AR L @R
Shenzhen Capital Group Co., Ltd 53,253,824 RMB ordinary shares
ARINTEIFHIEEEEBR A F AR L ER
Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Company Limited 42,460,000 RMB ordinary shares
IWREGEABELLERMDERRA A AR L @R
Guangxi Liugong Group Co., Ltd 17,243,712 RMB ordinary shares
EEWNIEREGR QA AR L @R
PICC Life Insurance Company Limited — internal fund 15,038,874 RMB ordinary shares
FEARASREROERLAG-BEES AR L ER

Note: Bt

1. It is not certain whether there is any connected relationship among the top ten 1. KR E] KM HE BT A B RE R A M BT+ &

shareholders and the other top ten non-restricted shareholders, or whether there EREFEHRRHECFLBHEER -
is any acting in concert relationship among them. thARAEREBR —HITEAL -
2. Among the shareholders, Hong Zejun, held zero shares through general account 2. REREA  HEHBAEBRFFHHO

and 80,000,000 shares through client account of collateral securities for margin
trading at China Galaxy Securities Company Limited, totaling 80,000,000 shares.

B EAFEHBTELFBRANAEFEH
X 5 1R i % BR P #5 £ 80,000,000 % + &
B & £ 4% A 80,000,000 8 ©
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS F2RR
The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant AR BRI E 5 M KRB F 3361517 B 1
to Section 336 of the SFO (including interests filed with the Hong Kong Stock 2R R a0 i (8 15 A & 78 B 32 AT AR 3R 0
Exchange) shows that as at 31 December 2015, the following persons (other %M@@mLm:%_§¢+iﬂi+_H’
than directors, chief executives and supervisors) had the following interests and THAL(EE - GREEASBRE %ﬂ_f\ﬂ\)
short positions (if any) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company: EARRARG RARBERG P HEE T #ER R
mealng) -
Percentage Percentage
of share of share
capital capital  Percentage
Long/ comprising comprising of total
Short ~ Number of only  Number of only issued share
Name Capacity position A shares A shares H shares H shares capital
AR fEHR  HEES
#e/ k& R& Rx@g
L at HE AREER Al HR & E Ol Bl
Weichai Group Holdings Limited Beneficial owner long 672,952,800 22.23% - - 16.83%
RREREEERATA EnEAA e
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. Held by controlled corporation long 672,952,800 22.23% - - 16.83%
(Note 1) ) mXEEERE e
WRETSEERAR (M)
Brandes Investment Partners, LP (Note 2) Investment manager Long - - 78578612 16.18% 3.93%
(Hrt2) RELRE e
Lazard Asset Management LLC Investment manager Long - - 175,2%,882 18.04% 4.38%
RERRE e
JPMorgan Chase & Co. Beneficial owner Long - - 11,259,398 1.16% 0.28%
EnfEAA e
Custodian - Corporation/approved Long - - 100,569,208 10.35% 252%
lending agent e
REA-ZE/BAERLREA
Investment manager Long - - 4,116,008 0.42% 0.10%
RERR e
115,944,614 11.93% 2.90%
Beneficial owner Short - - 2,875,000 0.30% 0.07%
EnEAA *E
Templeton Investment Counsel, LLC Investment manager Long - - 87,570,220 9.01% 2.19%
RERRE e
Lazard Emerging Markets Equity Portfolio Investment manager Long - - 23,707,500 5.86% 1.42%
(Note 3) (H1zt3) RERR e
Barclays PLC (Note 2) (fif322) Person having a security interest in Long - - 525,552 0.11% 0.03%
shares e
HROBERBERNA
Interest of corporation controlled Long - - 25,453,050 5.24% 1.27%
by the substantial shareholder e
KRR B 0 5 B
25,978,602 5.35% 1.30%
Interest of corporation controlled Short - - 24,102,475 4.96% 1.21%
by the substantial shareholder *E
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Percentage Percentage
of share of share
capital capital  Percentage
Long/ comprising comprising of total
Short ~ Number of only  Number of only issued share
Name Capacity position A shares A shares H shares H shares capital
AR fEHR HERT
#e/ &S B& REAY
£ & ®E AREE Ol HER % B BAk Al
FIL Limited Investment Manager Long - - 58,320,000 6.00% 1.46%
RELRE 59
Platinum Investment Management Limited Investment Manager Long - - 9,477,232 0.98% 0.24%
RELRE [59-)
Trustee (other than a bare trustee) Long - - 39,480,768 4.06% 0.99%
REABEDZFEARD) e
48,958,000 5.04% 1.23%

Notes: W et -

1. Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd., being a subsidiary of the State-owned Assets WREHFEEEEERZE N E L Al
Supervision and Administration Commission of Shandong Province, held the entire share RETEEFRAAFFHEFEEREEFIR
capital of Weichai Group Holding Limited (formerly known as Weifang Diesel Engine 2> &) (BT 78 73 4 15 58 0 i i) i 2 BB AR K -

Works).

2. The number of H shares (and the relevant shareholding percentages) reported above by 2. LB ZHBEFERRIGAECHERE L (R E
the relevant substantial shareholder does not take into consideration the Company’s BREBDIL)WETREARNGARZFE—HFN
bonus share issuance on 20 August 2015 as there is no disclosure of interest obligation AZ+HBARIKZETE U AR IRIREF
under the SFO where there is no change in percentage of shareholdings for a substantial REEEY HEBREZREBT S H I EE
shareholder. B R GEFFEE -

3. The number of H shares (and the relevant shareholding percentages) reported above by 3 LB MEAEFER R AECHERE L (R E

the relevant substantial shareholder does not take into consideration the Company’s
bonus share issuance on 17 August 2012 and 20 August 2015 as there is no disclosure
of interest obligation under the SFO where there is no change in percentage of
shareholdings for a substantial shareholder.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other
relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the Company
as at 31 December 2015.

B X EEIN
Zt-BAARAALERENEARARACELT
AR EMEBERERIORE -

BREB D)W ETREARNGRZFE—ZFN
At++tABR=ZF—AFNA=Z+HARIE %
T8 WTIERIBIEEFLZREEIEG - i EZ R
RZBREBDHLEES A GEEEE -

R—_ZE—HAF+ A
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DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS,

SUPERVISORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

46

Shareholdings of the directors, supervisors and senior
management

Ten of the directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company,
namely Tan Xuguang, Zhang Quan, Xu Xinyu, Sun Shaojun, Lu Wenwu,
Dai Lixin, Feng Gang, Tong Dehui, Ding Yingdong and Zhang Jiyuan, are
shareholders of the Company and have, with confidence in the future
development of the Company, voluntarily given their irrevocable
undertaking that the shares held by each of them in the Company shall
be put under lock-up arrangements for a period up to 30 April 2016.

New appointment or resignation of the directors,

supervisors and senior management

1. At the Board meeting convened on 30 March 2015, the Board
considered and approved the resignation of Ms. Zhang Fusheng as
an executive president of the Company.

2. At the Board meeting convened on 28 April 2015, the Board
considered and approved the resignation of Mr. Qian Cheng as a
vice president of the Company.

3. At the Board meeting convened on 15 May 2015, the Board
considered and approved the appointment of Mr. Dai Lixin as a
vice president of the Company.

4. At the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 30 June 2015, Mr. Julius G. Kiss, Ms. Han Xiaoqun and
Mr. Chu, Howard Ho Hwa retired as directors of the Company
and Mr. Sun Chengping retired as a shareholder representative
supervisor of the Company.

5. At the meeting of heads of staff representative (i TR XKEES
%) convened on 30 June 2015, Mr. Ma Changhai was elected as
a staff representative supervisor of the 4th session of the
supervisory committee of the Company.

WEICHAI POWER Co., LTD. HLahhiRMNDBERLAD

ESEHS (88

EF - EF SHHERAERN

EX - EE SAREEAERSR
B
KRRES EFE BRAEEBABDE
TERRARBRE SR ABMBK KRR
BHE FIE BXR B G
Bl iR TR RET HERY
RERRERORE OB EELTAT K
WEE HESARBRRNNRNAHE
HEE-F-—AFMEA=+AL-

EE EE SREEAENH

ER@ERR

1. R-ZE-RAF=ZA=ZF+HEIN
EFEA L EFECEARB
HERRELLTHEDANTR
B -

2. RZE—RHFHEAZ=ZF+N\HHEIT
MEZEgRL EECCERB
B EBRBREIEFELAFEEH
B e

3. R-E-—HFRAATHBERTH
EFxemt EFXgCEIRBG
ZEBIFEERQABIAER -

4. R-ZE-—HFRA=+REH
ZARABBERBFRGHERE
Julius G. Kiss 5t & ~ 88 /NEF 2 £ MK
BEALEREARARAFEE RFA
FRERERADNARREAKRES -
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6.  On 6 July 2015, the Board received the written resignation letters 6. RZE—HAFEARBEZTENK
from Mr. Yeung Sai Hong and Mr. Fang Hongwei. The Board: Bttt mEEMFAEEERK

MEERBRSE EF8C

(i)  agreed that Mr. Yeung Sai Hong resign as a non-executive () REHBHL EE BAEAR A
director of the Company with effect from 6 July 2015; and 3|E ﬁL TEE R_ZET—RHHF
+tANBR ixﬁ( 53

(i)  agreed that Mr. Fang Hongwei resign as an executive (ih RAEFOAHLEFTARQA
director and a member of the strategic development and MITESME Fﬂ’z EREKRE
investment committee of the Company with effect from 6 ZEeRE RN-_ZT—AHHF
July 2015. tﬂ/\EliExﬁo

7. At the Board meeting convened on 2 November 2015, the Board 7. RZE-—RAFT+-—AZHEIH
considered and approved the appointment of Mr. Zhang Jiyuan as EFegt ESsgCEARR

a vice president of the Company. ZERLITLIAEERBRFRBE -
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company and the Group had
the following continuing connected transactions, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

List of Connected Persons who had transactions and the
relationship with the Group

Name of Connected Persons Abbreviation

FEMMEERS
BE-_Z—aAF+-_A=+—B8BLFE XK
AABEAEBMBETINRENBERS %E
RGMATHBERE EWHRANE4AERN
BHERE-

BEALIEXRRAEEASEE 2BRE
Relationship between

the Connected Persons
and the Group

BEALEE i 78 BMEATEAERZBE
Shaanxi Automotive Group Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Automotive Held a 49% interest in a subsidiary of
RATEEEEREMERF BT & E the Company Shaanxi Heavy Duty

Fast Transmission
ETRHEE

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd.
AT HEAEEHEEFR A A

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd.
WEREBTEEMBERR R

Shandong Finance

W R B 7%

Weichai Holdings

e S AE X

Weichai Group Holdings Limited
MR EEBR QA

Chongging Weichai Diesel Engine Limited Chongging Weichai

Automotive Co., Ltd. (“Shaanxi Zhonggi”)
BARARFARIRAER FEHFRAF
(TBRPE & )]) 49% # %

Held a 49% interest in a subsidiary of the
Company, Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. (“SFGC")
RHARRAFRAABREZEZLIRERER
BEERQAIBRAE T HFERI 9% E R

Shandong Heavy Industry, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, indirectly

held a 35% interest in Shandong Finance
HBARARFERRLUREIMEFREFUR
B 7535% #E &

Held a 16.83% interest in the Company,

one of the Promoters of the Company
FAKRNA16.83%H &
RAFERBAZ—

Wholly-owned by Weichai Holdings

EREMRREPRERDA

Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co., Ltd.
IR S OB R A A

Weichai (Weifang) Medium-duty Diesel Engine Co., Ltd.

(formally known as Weifang Weichai Deutz

Diesel Engine Co., Ltd.)
HSECED) R RS AE R QA

(RTRB A M BHROREMEAER QA

Weichai Power Westport New Energy Engine Co., Ltd.

HETEFERBNER QA

48
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WS O

Weichai Medium
S R A

Weichai Westport
ST E
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HRERE2ERE

Wholly-owned by Weichai Holdings
HEER2ERSE

Wholly-owned by Weichai Holdings
HEER2ERSE

Weichai Holdings held a 40%
interest in Weichai Westport
MR RIF B AR BA0%ER
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Name of Connected Persons

Abbreviation

ESEHRS ()

Relationship between
the Connected Persons
and the Group

BEALTERB 5 78 BEATHASEHZBHF
Yangzhou Yaxing Motor Coach Co., Ltd. Yangzhou Yaxing Indirectly held as to 51% by Weichai Holdings
HBMNEEZTERMHERRA] HBMEE HAERIEREZERFASI1%ER

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd.
M EHR D BR QA

Weichai Generator Equipment Co. Ltd.
(formally known as Weichai Heavy-duty

Machinery (Weifang) Generator Equipment Co., Ltd.)

HRBERBARAA

(R e ERCENBERBER AR

Weichai Heavy Machinery
S B

Weichai Generator
Equipment

HERBERB

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had continuing
connected transactions entered into in accordance with the following

agreements.

Provision of general services and labor services by
Weichai Holdings and its associates to the Company and
its subsidiaries

Pursuant to the general services agreement entered into between the
Company and Weichai Holdings on 17 November 2003 (as amended
and supplemented by various supplemental agreements, collectively
referred to as “Weichai Holdings General Services Agreement”), Weichai
Holdings (and its associates) has agreed to provide certain labour services
as well as general services, namely, environmental protection, security,
fire, repair, maintenance and other general services and the payment of
certain town land use right tax in relation to the property occupied and/
or used by the Company and/or other members of the Group, to the
Company, Weichai Power (Weifang) Castings Co., Ltd. (“Weichai
Casting”, a subsidiary of the Company), Shandong Huadong Casting
Co., Ltd. ("Huadong Casting”, a subsidiary of the Company), Weichai
Power (Weifang) Intensive Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Weichai Logistics”, a
subsidiary of the Company) and other subsidiaries of the Company. The
fees payable by the Company and/or its subsidiaries to Weichai Holdings
(and its associates) with respect to the provision of the said services are
determined based on the actual costs incurred by Weichai Holdings (and
its associates) and apportioned on a pro-rata basis according to the area
of the relevant property occupied and/or used by the Company and/or
its subsidiaries plus a service charge representing not more than 20% of
such costs and settled by the parties on a monthly basis.

Weichai Holdings held a 30.59% interest
in Weichai Heavy Machinery
HE SR IR R B MR B 30.59% E =

Wholly-owned by Weichai Heavy Machinery
WERERTERER

rAEBEBRE_ZT-AFT-_A=1+—RH1
FEARBTI MBI LNFEEHEERS

HMRERREBBEALDO AR T
REFLARRHGEERBRE K
AR 7
REARAEREZEER_-_TT=F
T—ATERITZNES RS WHE G
ZHRMBAGRETRBRE REHH
RERGARBHED  ERITZFBEEHE
FBEALTREMEARRREFRAR
HETEBREALRR RE - H -
wEe REREEHEARBESERAR
B UERABINARAUAR,REH
WEAMK B AR AR R A HSE DO
IBBRERIRTHEBR] HERQ
ANTFAR) WREFFEFR QA
(TEZH@E] DARRAKF R GE)MEE
B ENREXARIA(HRSE
Bl DARRBHTFRA)RARBE
fhFRABERR AERBNDENE
THELMERR -SRI RSEM
AR AREEF R R E R
BEREBEALIXNNERRREE
RERMEBEBALIREENERX
ARARARR/FEFREERRS
SEROBERYERMBLLA 2 E - 50
1 5% B R AN % 1020% H) IR 7 M o0 & 5t
5 mETRAKGE -
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Pursuant to the general services agreement entered into between the
Company and Chongging Weichai on 17 November 2003 (as amended
and supplemented by various supplemental agreements, collectively
referred to as “Chongging Weichai General Services Agreement”),
Chongging Weichai (and its associates) has agreed to provide certain
general services to the Company’s Chongging branch office and/or other
members of the Group, namely, environmental protection, security, fire,
and other general services and the payment of certain town land use
right tax in relation to the property occupied and/or used by the
Company’s Chongging branch office and/or other members of the
Group. The fees payable by the Company’s Chongging branch office
and/or other members of the Group to Chongging Weichai (and its
associates) with respect to the provision of the said services are
determined based on the actual costs incurred by Chongging Weichai
(and its associates) and apportioned on a pro-rata basis according to the
area of the relevant property occupied and/or used by the Company’s
Chongging branch office and/or other members of the Group plus a
service charge not exceeding 20% of such costs (save that the town
land use right tax paid by Chongging Weichai (and its associates) on
behalf of the Company’s Chongging branch office and/or other
members of the Group will not be subject to the said 20% service
charge) and are settled by the parties on a monthly basis.

Upon the expiry of the Weichai Holdings General Services Agreement
and the Chongqing Weichai General Services Agreement on 31
December 2016, the parties shall have an option to renew the
agreements for a term of three years on a mutually agreed basis. The
approved annual cap for the aforesaid services provided by Weichai
Holdings and Chongging Weichai and their respective associates for the
year ended 31 December 2015 is RMB135 million. In the year ended 31
December 2015 the total amount charged by Weichai Holdings and
Chongging Weichai and their respective associates to the Company and
its subsidiaries for the said services was RMB88,313,582.

WEICHAI POWER Co., LTD. HLahhiRMNDBERLAD
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Supply and/or connection of utilities by Weichai
Holdings and its associates to the Company and its
subsidiaries

Pursuant to the utility services agreement entered into between the
Company and Weichai Holdings on 17 November 2003 (as amended
and supplemented by various supplemental agreements, collectively
referred to as “Weichai Holdings Utilities Services Agreement”), Weichai
Holdings (and its associates) have agreed to provide or provide the
connection of certain utility and energy services to the Company,
Weichai Casting, Weichai Power Freshen Air Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Weichai Freshen Air”, a subsidiary of the Company) and other
subsidiaries of the Company, namely, water, electricity, gas, steam,
oxygen, nitrogen, compressed air, waste water treatment and supply of
treated waste water, etc. The fees payable by the Company and/or its
subsidiaries to Weichai Holdings (and its associates) with respect to the
provision of the said services are determined based on the actual usage
of the Company and/or its subsidiaries and by reference to the market
prices of such utilities. If only government published rates are available
with respect to certain utilities, the fees payable would be determined by
reference to the government published rates plus the wastage,
depreciation and repair expenses incurred by Weichai Holdings (and its
associates) in relation thereto. If no market price or government
published rates with respect to the above utility and energy services are
available, the Company and/or its subsidiaries will pay the actual costs
incurred by Weichai Holdings (and its associates) in relation to the
provision of such utility and energy services plus a service charge
representing not more than 20% of such costs. In the year ended 31
December 2015, Weichai Holdings (and its associates) has been charging
the Company and its subsidiaries a service charge of 15% of the actual
costs incurred thereof. The fees are settled by the parties on a monthly
basis.

Pursuant to the utility services agreement entered into between the
Company and Chongging Weichai on 17 November 2003 (as amended
and supplemented by various supplemental agreements, collectively
referred to as “Chongging Weichai Utilities Services Agreement”),
Chongging Weichai (and its associates) has agreed to provide or provide
the connection of certain utility and energy services to the Company’s
Chongging branch office and/or other members of the Group, namely,
water, electricity, natural gas, steam, oxygen, nitrogen and compressed
air, etc. The fees payable by the Company and/or its subsidiaries to
Chongging Weichai (and its associates) with respect to the provision of
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the said services are determined based on the usage thereof by the
Company’s Chongging branch office and/or other members of the
Group or, if it is not possible to measure such usage, pro-rated
according to the respective sales of Chongging Weichai and the
Company’s Chongging branch office and/or other members of the
Group and by reference to the market prices of such utilities. If only
government published rates are available with respect to certain utilities,
the fees payable will be determined by reference to the government
published rates plus the wastage, depreciation and repair expenses
incurred by Chongging Weichai (and its associates) in relation to the
provision of the relevant utilities. If no market prices or government
published rates with respect to the above utilities and energy services are
available, the Company and/or other members of the Group will pay the
actual costs incurred by Chongging Weichai and its associates in relation
to the provision of such utilities and energy services plus a service charge
representing not more than 20% of such costs. In the year ended 31
December 2015, Chongging Weichai and its associates have been
charging the Company and/or other members of the Group a service
charge of 20% of the actual costs incurred thereof. The fees are settled
by the parties on a monthly basis.

Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreement to the Weichai Holdings
Utilities Services Agreement and the Chongging Weichai Utilities Services
Agreement dated 27 August 2015, Weichai Holdings (and its associates)
has agreed to provide or provide the connection of the said utility and
energy services to the Company, Weichai Casting, Weichai Freshen Air
and/or other members of the Group, and Chongging Weichai (and its
associates) has agreed to provide or provide the connection of the said
utility and energy services to the Company’s Chongqing branch office
and/or other members of the Group, on the same terms and for a period
of two years ending 31 December 2016.

Upon the expiry of the Weichai Holdings Utilities Services Agreement
and the Chongging Weichai Utilities Services Agreement on 31
December 2016, the parties shall have an option to renew the
agreements for a term of three years on a mutually agreed basis. The
approved annual cap for the aforesaid services provided by Weichai
Holdings and Chongging Weichai and their respective associates for the
year ended 31 December 2015 is RMB600 million. In the year ended 31
December 2015, the total amount charged by Weichai Holdings and
Chongging Weichai and their respective associates to the Company and
its subsidiaries for the said services was RMB243,162,346.
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Purchase of diesel engine parts and components, gas,
scrap metals, materials, diesel engines and related
products and processing services by the Company and its
subsidiaries from Weichai Holdings and its associates
Pursuant to the purchase and processing services agreement entered
into between the Company, Weichai Holdings and Chongging Weichai
on 27 November 2008, (as amended and supplemented by various
supplemental agreements, collectively referred to as the “Weichai
Purchase and Processing Services Agreement”):

(i) the Company, Weichai Casting, Weichai Power (Weifang)
Reproduction Company Limited (“Weichai Reproduction”, a
subsidiary of the Company), Huadong Casting, Weichai Singapore
Pte. Ltd. (“Weichai Singapore”, a subsidiary of the Company) and
other subsidiaries of the Company have agreed to purchase parts
and components of diesel engines, gas, scrap metals, materials,
diesel engines and related products from Weichai Holdings,
Chongging Weichai, Weichai Import and Export and other
associates of Weichai Holdings; and

(i) Weichai Holdings, Chongging Weichai, Weichai Import and Export
and other associates of Weichai Holdings have agreed to provide
processing services to the Company and its subsidiaries with
respect to the said parts and components of diesel engines, gas,
scrap metals, materials, diesel engines and related products.

The said purchases and processing services are transacted at market
prices and are settled by the parties on a monthly basis.

Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreement to the Weichai Purchase
and Processing Services Agreement dated 27 August 2015, Weichai
Holdings, Chongging Weichai and Weichai Import and Export (and other
associates of Weichai Holding) have agreed to provide the said products
and processing services to the Company (and its Chongging branch
office), Weichai Casting, Weichai Reproduction, Huadong Casting,
Weichai Singapore and other subsidiaries of the Company, on the same
terms and for a period of two years ending 31 December 2016.

Upon the expiry of the Weichai Purchase and Processing Services
Agreement on 31 December 2016, the parties shall have an option to
renew the agreement for a term of three years on a mutually agreed
basis. The approved annual cap for the aforesaid purchases made and
services received from Weichai Holdings and its associates for the year
ended 31 December 2015 is RMB600 million. In the year ended 31
December 2015, the total purchases made and processing services
received by the Company and its subsidiaries from Weichai Holdings and
its associates amounted to RMB482,326,279.
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Sale of diesel engines, diesel engine parts and
components, materials, semi-finished goods and related
products and provision of processing services by the
Company and its subsidiaries to Weichai Holdings and its
associates

Pursuant to the sale and processing services agreement entered into
between the Company and Weichai Power Reserves and Resources
Company (“Weichai Resources”,
suppliers and Weichai Holdings and its certain associates as customers
on 27 November 2008 (as amended and supplemented by various
supplemental agreements, collectively referred to as the “Weichai Sale
and Processing Service Agreement”), the Company (and its Chongging
branch office), Weichai Resources, Weichai Casting, Weichai

a subsidiary of the Company) as

Reproduction, Weichai Logistics and other subsidiaries of the Company
have agreed to (i) sell certain diesel engines, diesel engine parts and
components, materials, semi-finished products and related products, and
(i) provide certain processing services in relation to the production of
diesel engines to Weichai Holdings, Weichai Import and Export,
Chongging Weichai, Chongging City Jiangjin District Chongwei Casting
Co. Ltd. (which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Weichai Holdings and
subsequently absorbed and consolidated into Chongging Weichai) and
other associates of Weichai Holdings at market prices. The transactions
are settled by the parties on a monthly basis.

Upon the expiry of the Weichai Sale and Processing Service Agreement
on 31 December 2016, the parties shall have an option to renew the
agreement for a term of three years on a mutually agreed basis. The
approved annual cap for the aforesaid sales made and services provided
to Weichai Holdings and its associates for the year ended 31 December
2015 is RMB420 million. In the year ended 31 December 2015, the total
sales made and processing services provided by the Company and its
subsidiaries to Weichai Holdings and its associates amounted to
RMB399,522,919.
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Lease of buildings and equipment by Weichai Holdings
(and its associates) to the Company (and its subsidiaries)
Pursuant to the asset lease agreement entered into between the
Company and Weichai Holdings on 21 October 2003 (as amended and
supplemented by various supplemental agreements, collectively referred
to as “Lease of Buildings and Equipment”), Weichai Holdings has agreed
to lease to the Company and its subsidiaries certain buildings (including
factories and warehouses with a total gross floor area of 63,245 square
metres) situated at Weichai Holdings (the “Buildings”) and all the
equipment in relation to the manufacture of certain semi-finished diesel
engine parts (collectively referred to as “Equipment”) located in the
Buildings for a term ending 31 December 2015, upon the expiry of
which the parties may renew the term for another three years on a
mutually agreed basis.

On 28 July 2014, a supplemental agreement was entered into between
the Company and Weichai Holdings in relation to the Lease of Buildings
and Equipment, pursuant to which the approved annual cap for the
lease rental payable to Weichai Holdings in respect of the Lease of
Buildings and Equipment for the year ended 31 December 2015 has
been amended to RMB44 million. In the year ended 31 December 2015,
the total lease rental payable by the Company and its subsidiaries to
Weichai Holdings in respect of the Lease of Buildings and Equipment
amounted to RMB7,571,078.

As the relevant cap, when aggregated with the transaction disclosed
under paragraph 6 below, did not exceed the 0.1% threshold referred
to in Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules, the transaction contemplated
under the Lease of Buildings and Equipment is no longer subject to the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The relevant terms
and annual caps of the Lease of Buildings and Equipment are disclosed
herein for the Shareholders’ information.
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Lease of properties by Chongging Weichai to the
Company

Pursuant to the properties lease agreement entered into between the
Company and Chongging Weichai on 1 July 2003 (as amended and
supplemented by various supplemental agreements, collectively referred
to as “Lease of Properties”), Chongging Weichai has agreed to lease to
the Company certain land and buildings where the Chongging
production line is situated for a term ending 31 December 2015, upon
the expiry of which the parties may renew the term for another three
years on a mutually agreed basis.

The approved annual caps for the lease rental payable to Chongging
Weichai in respect of the Lease of Properties for the years ended 31
December 2015 is RMB4 million. In the year ended 31 December 2015,
the total lease rental payable by the Company to Chongging Weichai in
respect of the Lease of Properties amounted to RMB4,000,000.

Sale of semi-finished diesel engine parts and related
products and logistic service by the Company and its
subsidiaries to Weichai Medium and its associates
Pursuant to the master sales agreement entered into between the
Company and Weichai Medium on 21 October 2003 (as supplemented
by various supplemental agreements), the Company, Weichai Resources,
Weichai Casting, Weichai Reproduction, Huadong Casting, Weichai
Logistics and other subsidiaries of the Company have agreed to supply
semi-finished diesel engine parts and related products and provide
certain logistic service to Weichai Medium and its associates for its 2268
series of diesel engines and related products, at market prices and
settled on a monthly basis.

Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreement to the said master sales
agreement dated 27 August 2015, the Company, Weichai Resources,
Weichai Casting, Weichai Reproduction, Huadong Casting, Weichai
Logistics, Weichai Freshen Air and other subsidiaries of the Company
have agreed to supply the said products and provide the said services to
Weichai Medium and its associates on the same terms and for a period
of two years ending 31 December 2016, upon the expiry of which the
parties shall have an option to extend the term for another three years
on a mutually agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid sales of semi-finished diesel
engine parts and related products and logistic service to Weichai
Medium and its associates for the year ended 31 December 2015 is
RMB350 million. In the year ended 31 December 2015, total sales of
RMB163,310,380 of semi-finished diesel engine parts and related
products and logistic service were made and/or provided by the
Company and its subsidiaries to Weichai Medium and its associates.
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Provision of sales and warranty period repair services by
the Company and its subsidiaries to Weichai Medium
and its associates

Pursuant to the sales and warranty agreement entered into between the
Company and Weichai Medium on 21 September 2005 (as
supplemented by various supplemental agreements), the Company and/
or other members of the Group have agreed to provide sales and
warranty period repair and maintenance services to Weichai Medium
and/or its associates, at market prices and settled on a monthly basis, for
a term ending 31 December 2016, upon the expiry of which the parties
shall have an option to extend the term for another three years on a
mutually agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid sales and warranty period
repair services provided to Weichai Medium and its associates for the
year ended 31 December 2015 is RMB51.6 million. In the year ended 31
December 2015, the sales and warranty period repair services provided
by the Company and other members of the Group to Weichai Medium
and its associates amounted to RMB31,359,840.

Purchase of diesel engine parts and components and
related products by the Company and its subsidiaries
from Weichai Medium and its associates

Pursuant to the diesel engine parts and components and related
products purchase agreement entered into between Weichai Resources
and Weichai Medium on 27 November 2008 (as supplemented by
various supplemental agreements), Weichai Resources, Weichai Casting,
Weichai Reproduction and/or other members of the Group have agreed
to purchase from Weichai Medium and its associates certain parts and
components for the manufacture of diesel engines and related products,
at market prices and settled on a monthly basis, for a term ending 31
December 2016, upon the expiry of which the parties shall have an
option to extend the term for another three years on a mutually agreed
basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid purchases of diesel engine
parts and components and related products from Weichai Medium and/
or its associates for the year ended 31 December 2015 is RMB110
million. In the year ended 31 December 2015, the total purchases of
diesel engine parts and components and related products made by the
Company and its subsidiaries from Weichai Medium and its associates
amounted to RMB32,771,385.
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Purchase of diesel engines and related products by the
Company and its subsidiaries from Weichai Medium
Pursuant to the diesel engines purchase agreement entered into
between the Company and Weichai Medium on 27 November 2008 (as
supplemented by various supplemental agreements), the Company and
its subsidiaries have agreed to purchase certain diesel engines and
related products from Weichai Medium, at market prices and settled on
a quarterly basis.

Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreement to the said diesel engines
purchase agreement dated 27 August 2015, the Company, Weichai
Resources, Weichai Casting, Weichai Reproduction and other subsidiaries
of the Company have agreed to purchase the said diesel engines and
related products from Weichai Medium on the same terms and for a
period of two years ending 31 December 2016, upon the expiry of
which the parties shall have an option to extend the term for another
three years on a mutually agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid purchases of diesel engines
and related products from Weichai Medium for the year ended 31
December 2015 is RMB620 million. In the year ended 31 December
2015, the total purchases of diesel engines and related products made
by the Company and its subsidiaries from Weichai Medium amounted to
RMB285,206,039.

Sale of diesel engines and related products by the
Company and its subsidiaries to Weichai Heavy
Machinery and its associates

The Company and Weichai Holdings entered into a framework
agreement on 17 November 2003 (as supplemented by various
supplemental agreements). The rights and obligations of Weichai
Holdings in the aforesaid agreement were assumed by Weichai Heavy
Machinery pursuant to the supplemental framework agreement entered
into between the Company and Weichai Heavy Machinery on 29 August
2013.

Pursuant to such framework agreement (as supplemented by various
supplemental agreements), the Company, Weichai Reproduction,
Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel Engine Co., Ltd. (“Weichai Yangzhou”,
a subsidiary of the Company), Baudouin (Weifang) Power Co., Ltd.
(“Baudouin China”, a subsidiary of the Company) and/or other
subsidiaries of the Company have agreed to sell to Weichai Heavy
Machinery, Weichai Generator Equipment and/or other subsidiaries of
Weichai Heavy Machinery certain diesel engines and related products, at
market prices and settled on a monthly basis, for a term ended 31
December 2015, upon the expiry of which the parties may extend the
term for another three years on a mutually agreed basis.
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The approved annual cap for the aforesaid sales of diesel engines and
related products to Weichai Heavy Machinery and/or its associates for
the year ended 31 December 2015 is RMB750 million. In the year ended
31 December 2015, the total sales of diesel engines and related
products made by the Company and its subsidiaries to Weichai Heavy
Machinery and/or its associates amounted to RMB250,746,914.

Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreement to the said framework
agreement dated 27 August 2015, the Company, Weichai Reproduction,
Weichai Yangzhou and Baudouin China and/or other subsidiaries of the
Company have agreed to sell to Weichai Heavy Machinery, Weichai
Generator Equipment and/or other associates of Weichai Heavy
Machinery the said diesel engines and related products on the same
terms and for a period of three years ending 31 December 2018, upon
the expiry of which the parties may extend the term for another three
years on a mutually agreed basis.

Purchase of diesel engine parts and components,
materials, steel and scrap metal, diesel engines and
related products and the processing and labour services
by the Company and its subsidiaries from Weichai Heavy
Machinery and its associates

Pursuant to the purchase and processing services agreement entered
into between the Company and Weichai Resources and Weichai Heavy
Machinery on 27 November 2008 (as supplemented by various
supplemental agreements), the Company (and its Chongging branch
office), Weichai Resources, Weichai Casting, Weichai Reproduction,
Huadong Casting, Weichai Logistics, Baudouin China and/or other
members of the Group have agreed to purchase from Weichai Heavy
Machinery, Weichai Generator Equipment and/or other associates of
Weichai Heavy Machinery diesel engine parts and components, steel and
scrap metal, materials, diesel engines and related products and
processing and labour services.

The said purchases and processing services are transacted at market
prices and settled on a monthly basis for a term ending 31 December
2016, upon the expiry of which the parties may extend the term for
another three years on a mutually agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid purchases made and
processing services received from Weichai Heavy Machinery and/or its
associates for the year ended 31 December 2015 is RMB950 million. In
the year ended 31 December 2015, the total purchases made and
processing services received by the Company and other members of the
Group from Weichai Heavy Machinery and its associates amounted to
RMB199,755,622.
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Supply of semi-finished diesel engine parts, diesel
engine parts and components, reserve parts and related
products and provision of labor services by the Company
and its subsidiaries to Weichai Heavy Machinery and its
associates

The Company and Weichai Holdings entered into a semi-finished diesel
engine parts supply agreement on 17 November 2003 (as amended and
supplemented by various supplemental agreements). The rights and
obligations of Weichai Holdings in the aforesaid agreement were
assumed by Weichai Heavy Machinery pursuant to the supplemental
agreement entered into between the Company, Weichai Holdings and
Weichai Heavy Machinery on 9 November 2009.

Pursuant to such semi-finished diesel engine parts supply agreement (as
amended and supplemented by various supplemental agreements), the
Company, Weichai Reproduction, Weichai Resources, Weichai Casting,
Huadong Casting, Weichai Logistics and/or other members of the Group
have agreed to sell certain semi-finished diesel engine parts, diesel
engine parts and components, reserve parts and related products and to
provide the relevant labour services to Weichai Heavy Machinery,
Weichai Generator Equipment and/or other associates of Weichai Heavy
Machinery at market prices and settled on a monthly basis for a term
ending 31 December 2015, upon the expiry of which the parties may
renew the term for another three years on a mutually agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid supply of semi-finished diesel
engine parts to Weichai Heavy Machinery and/or its associates for the
year ended 31 December 2015 is RMB500 million. In the year ended 31
December 2015, the total supply of semi-finished diesel engine parts,
diesel engine parts and components, reserve parts and related products
and provision of labour services by the Company and other members of
the Group to Weichai Heavy Machinery and its associates amounted to
RMB91,796,121.

Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreement to the said semi-finished
diesel engine parts supply agreement dated 27 August 2015, the
Company, Weichai Reproduction, Weichai Resources, Weichai Casting,
Huadong Casting, Weichai Logistics and/or other subsidiaries of the
Company have agreed to sell the said semi-finished diesel engine parts,
diesel engine parts and components, reserve parts and related products
and to provide the said labour services to Weichai Heavy Machinery,
Weichai Generator Equipment and/or its associates on the same terms
and for a period of three years ending 31 December 2018, upon the
expiry of which the parties may renew the term for another three years
on a mutually agreed basis.

WEICHAI POWER Co., LTD. HLahhiRMNDBERLAD
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Sale of parts and components of transmissions and
related products by SFGC to Fast Transmission

Pursuant to the parts and components sale agreement entered into
between SFGC and Fast Transmission on 1 August 2007 (as amended
and supplemented by various supplemental agreements), SFGC has
agreed to sell to Fast Transmission certain parts and components of
transmissions, namely, gearboxes, and related products at market prices
and settled every two to three months, for a term ending 31 December
2015, upon the expiry of which the parties shall have an option to
renew the agreement for a term of three years on a mutually agreed
basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid sales of parts and
components of transmissions to Fast Transmission for the year ended 31
December 2015 is RMB4.8 billion. In the year ended 31 December 2015,
the total sales of parts and components of transmissions made by SFGC
to Fast Transmission amounted to RMB1,059,247,672.

Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreement to the said parts and
components sale agreement dated 27 August 2015, SFGC has agreed to
sell to Fast Transmission the said parts and components of transmissions
and related products on the same terms and for a period of three years
ending 31 December 2018, upon the expiry of which the parties shall
have an option to renew the agreement for a term of three years on a
mutually agreed basis.

Purchase of parts and components of transmissions and
related products by SFGC from Fast Transmission

Pursuant to the parts and components purchase agreement entered into
between SFGC and Fast Transmission on 1 August 2007 (as amended
and supplemented by various supplemental agreements), SFGC has
agreed to purchase from Fast Transmission certain parts and
components of transmissions and gears, namely, power take off
assemblies and castings, and related products at market prices and
settled every two to three months for a term ending 31 December 2015,
upon the expiry of which the parties shall have an option to renew the
agreement for a term of three years on a mutually agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid purchase of parts and
components of transmissions from Fast Transmission for the year ended
31 December 2015 is RMB5 billion. In the year ended 31 December
2015, the total purchases of parts and components of transmissions and
related products made by SFGC from Fast Transmission amounted to
RMB1,823,165,164.
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Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreement to the said parts and
components purchase agreement dated 27 August 2015, SFGC has
agreed to purchase from Fast Transmission the said parts and
components of transmissions and gears and related products on the
same terms and for a period of three years ending 31 December 2018,
upon the expiry of which the parties shall have an option to renew the
agreement for a term of three years on a mutually agreed basis.

Sale of vehicles, parts and components of vehicles, raw
materials and related products and provision of the
relevant services by Shaanxi Zhongqi and its subsidiaries
and Weichai Freshen Air to Shaanxi Automotive and its
associates

Pursuant to the vehicles, parts and components and raw materials sale
and heat processing services agreement entered into between Shaanxi
Zhonggi and certain other subsidiaries of the Company as suppliers (the
“Shaanxi Suppliers”) and Shaanxi Automotive and its associates as
customers (the “Shaanxi Customers”) on 1 August 2007 (as
supplemented by various supplemental agreements), the Shaanxi
Suppliers and Weichai Freshen Air have agreed to sell certain vehicles,
parts and components of vehicles, raw materials and related products,
and provide the relevant services to the Shaanxi Customers, at market
prices and settled by the parties every one to three months, for a term
ending 31 December 2016, upon the expiry of which the parties shall
have an option to renew the agreement for a term of three years on a
mutually agreed basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid sales of vehicles, parts and
components of vehicles, raw materials and related products and
provision of the relevant services to Shaanxi Automotive and its
associates for the year ended 31 December 2015 is RMB6.5 billion. In
the year ended 31 December 2015, the total sales of vehicles, parts and
components of vehicles, raw materials and related products and
provision of the relevant services by Shaanxi Zhonggi and its subsidiaries
and Weichai Freshen Air to Shaanxi Automotive and its associates
amounted to RMB444,945,216.
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Purchase of parts and components of vehicles, scrap
steel and related products and labour services by
Shaanxi Zhongqi and its subsidiaries from Shaanxi
Automotive and its associates

Pursuant to the parts and components and scrap steel purchase
agreement entered into between Shaanxi Zhonggi and certain other
subsidiaries of the Company as buyers (the “Shaanxi Buyers”) and
certain associates of Shaanxi Automotive as sellers (the “Shaanxi
Sellers”) on 1 August 2007 (as supplemented by various supplemental
agreements), the Shaanxi Buyers have agreed to purchase certain parts
and components of vehicles, scrap steel, related products and labour
services from the Shaanxi Sellers, at market prices and settled by the
parties every one to three months, for a term ending 31 December
2016, upon the expiry of which the parties shall have an option to
renew the agreement for a term of three years on a mutually agreed
basis.

The approved annual cap for the aforesaid purchases of parts and
components of vehicles, scrap steel, related products and labour services
from Shaanxi Automotive and its associates for the year ended 31
December 2015 is RMB7.2 billion. In the year ended 31 December 2015,
the total purchases of parts and components of vehicles, scrap steel and
related products and labour services made by Shaanxi Zhonggi and its
subsidiaries from Shaanxi Automotive and its associates amounted to
RMB1,394,926,062.

Sale of diesel engines and related products by the
Company and Weichai Yangzhou to Yangzhou Yaxing
and its subsidiaries

The diesel engines supply framework agreement entered into between
the Company and Yangzhou Yaxing on 26 October 2012 (as
supplemented by various supplemental agreements) sets out the general
terms and conditions for the sale of diesel engines and related products
by the Company and Weichai Yangzhou to Yangzhou Yaxing and its
subsidiaries. The said diesel engines and related products shall be sold by
the Company and Weichai Yangzhou to Yangzhou Yaxing and its
subsidiaries from time to time with reference to market prices and
settled on a monthly basis. The transactions shall be subject to normal
commercial terms and terms no less favourable to the Company than
those available to the Company from independent third parties.
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Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreement to the said diesel engines
supply framework agreement dated 30 March 2015, the Company and
Weichai Yangzhou have agreed to sell the said diesel engines and
related products to Yangzhou Yaxing and its subsidiaries on the same
terms and for a period of three years ending 31 December 2017, upon
the expiry of which the parties may renew the term for another three
years on a mutually agreed basis.

The annual cap for the aforesaid sales of diesel engines and related
products by the Company and Weichai Yangzhou to Yangzhou Yaxing
and its subsidiaries for the year ended 2015 is RMB214 million. In the
year ended 31 December 2015, the total sales of diesel engines and
related products made by the Company and Weichai Yangzhou to
Yangzhou Yaxing and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB179,332,622.

Sale of transmissions by SFGC to Yangzhou Yaxing and
its subsidiaries

The transmissions supply framework agreement entered into between
SFGC and Yangzhou Yaxing on 26 October 2012 (as supplemented
by various supplemental agreements) sets out the general terms and
conditions for the sale of transmissions by SFGC to Yangzhou Yaxing
and its subsidiaries. The said transmissions shall be sold by SFGC to
Yangzhou Yaxing and its subsidiaries from time to time with reference
to market prices and settled on a monthly basis. The transactions shall
be subject to normal commercial terms and terms no less favourable to
SFGC than those available to SFGC from independent third parties.

Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreement to the said transmissions
supply framework agreement dated 30 March 2015, SFGC has agreed to
sell the said transmissions to Yangzhou Yaxing and its subsidiaries on the
same terms and for a period of three years ending 31 December 2017,
upon the expiry of which the parties may renew the term for another
three years on a mutually agreed basis.

The annual cap for the aforesaid sale of transmissions by SFGC to
Yangzhou Yaxing and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2015 is RMB20,000,000. In the year ended 31 December 2015, the
actual transaction amount of such sales was RMB8,913,983.
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Sale of axles by Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd. (“Hande
Axle”, a subsidiary of Shaanxi Zhongqi) to Yangzhou
Yaxing and its subsidiaries

The axles supply framework agreement entered into between Hande
Axle and Yangzhou Yaxing on 26 October 2012 (as supplemented by
various supplementary agreements) sets out the general terms and
conditions for the sales of axles by Hande Axle to Yangzhou Yaxing and
its subsidiaries. The said axles shall be sold by Hande Axle to Yangzhou
Yaxing and its subsidiaries from time to time with reference to market
prices and with a payment term of two months. The transactions shall
be subject to normal commercial terms and terms no less favourable to
Hande Axle than those available to Hande Axle from independent third
parties.

Pursuant to the latest supplemental agreement to the said axles supply
framework agreement dated 30 March 2015, Hande Axle has agreed to
sell the said axles to Yangzhou Yaxing and its subsidiaries on the same
terms and for a period of three years ending 31 December 2017, upon
the expiry of which the parties may renew the term for another three
years on a mutually agreed basis.

The annual cap for the aforesaid sale of axles by Hande Axle to
Yangzhou Yaxing and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2015 is RMB75 million. In the year ended 31 December 2015, the sales
of axles made by Hande Axle to Yangzhou Yaxing and its subsidiaries
was RMB27,063,799.
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Provision of financial services to the Company and its
subsidiaries by Shandong Finance

Pursuant to the financial services agreement entered into between the
Company and Shandong Finance on 21 March 2013, Shandong Finance
has agreed to provide, inter alia, certain deposit services to the Company
and its subsidiaries with a term of three years.

Shandong Finance shall provide certain deposit services to the Group,
the principal terms of which are as follows:

(@)  the interest rate for the deposit of the Group’s funds with
Shandong Finance shall, subject to the compliance of the relevant
requirements of the People”s Bank of China, be no less than the
highest interest rate for the same type of deposit offered by the
major commercial banks for the same period; and

(b)  the maximum daily balance (including interests) of the Group’s
deposit with Shandong Finance shall not exceed RMB9 billion from
30 June 2013 to 29 June 2014, RMB10.8 billion from 30 June
2014 to 29 June 2015, and RMB13 billion from 30 June 2015 to
29 June 2016.

During the period from 1 January 2015 to 29 June 2015, the maximum
daily balance (including interests) of the Group's deposit in Shandong
Finance amounted to RMB10,799,994,840, whereas during the period
from 30 June 2015 to 31 December 2015, the maximum daily balance
(including interests) of the Group’s deposit in Shandong Finance
amounted to RMB12,698,558,550.

As the existing financial services agreement will expire on 29 June
2016, the Company and Shandong Finance has entered into a new
financial services agreement for a period of three years ending 29 June
2019, pursuant to which and subject to the relevant approval at a
shareholders’ meeting of the Company, Shandong Finance has agreed
to provide, inter alia, certain deposit services to the Company and its
subsidiaries. Upon expiry of such financial services agreement, the parties
shall have an option to renew the agreement for a term of three years
on a mutually agreed basis.
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REPORT (CONTINUED)

Supply of base engines, gas engine parts, utility and
labour services, technology development services and
related products and services by the Company and its
subsidiaries and associates to Weichai Westport

Pursuant to the framework supply agreement entered into between
the Company, Weichai Reproduction, Weichai Resources and Weichai
Westport on 25 December 2012 (as amended and supplemented by a
supplemental agreement dated 8 December 2014, collectively referred to
as the “Weichai Westport Supply Agreement”), each of the Company,
Weichai Resources, Weichai Reproduction, Weichai Freshen Air and other
associates of the Company has agreed to supply certain base engines,
gas engine parts, utility and labour services, technology development
services and related products and services to Weichai Westport, at
market prices and/or prices agreed according to the principle of fairness
and reasonableness and settled on a monthly basis for a term from
1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017, upon the expiry of which the
parties may extend the term for three years on a mutually agreed basis.

The annual cap for the aforesaid supply of certain base engines, gas
engine parts, utility and labour services, technology development services
and related products for the year ended 31 December 2015 is RMB3.1
billion. In the year ended 31 December 2015, the total supply of the said
products and services by the Company (and its subsidiaries) to Weichai
Westport amounted to RMB456,185,388.

Purchase of gas engines, gas engine parts, labour
services and related products and services by the
Company and its subsidiaries and associates from
Weichai Westport

Pursuant to the framework purchase agreement entered into between
the Company, Weichai Reproduction and Weichai Resources and Weichai
Westport on 25 December 2012 (as amended and supplemented by a
supplemental agreement dated 8 December 2014, collectively referred to
as the “Weichai Westport Purchase Agreement”), each of the Company,
Weichai Resources, Weichai Reproduction and other associates of the
Company has agreed to purchase certain gas engines, gas engine parts,
labour services and related products and services from Weichai Westport,
at market prices and/or prices agreed according to the principle of
fairness and reasonableness and settled on a monthly basis for a term
from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017, upon the expiry of which
the parties may extend the term for three years on a mutually agreed
basis.
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24.

68

The annual cap for the aforesaid purchase of gas engines, gas engine
parts, labour services and related products for the year ended 31
December 2015 is RMB5.3 billion. In the year ended 31 December
2015, the total purchase of the said products and services by the
Company (and its subsidiaries) from Weichai Westport amounted to
RMB1,032,309,947.

Provision of logistics and storage services by Weichai
Logistics (and/or its associates) to Weichai Westport
Pursuant to the framework logistics agreement (as amended and
supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated 8 December 2014,
collectively referred to as the “Weichai Westport Logistics Agreement”)
entered into between Weichai Logistics and Weichai Westport, Weichai
Logistics (and/or its associates) has agreed to provide certain logistics and
storage services to Weichai Westport for the transportation of certain
products and after-sale components, at market price of comparable
services and settled on a monthly basis, for a term from 1 January 2015
to 31 December 2017, upon the expiry of which the parties may extend
the term for three years on a mutually agreed basis.

The annual cap for the aforesaid provision of logistics and storage
services for the year ended 31 December 2015 is RMB18,000,000. In the
year ended 31 December 2015, the provision of the said services by
Weichai Logistics (and/or its associates) to Weichai Westport amounted
to RMB3,572,548.

The annual cap for the above provision of services for the term from 1
January 2015 to 31 December 2017 did not exceed the 0.1% threshold
referred to in Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules, and, accordingly, are
not subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The relevant terms and annual caps of the Weichai Westport Logistics
Agreement are disclosed herein for the Shareholders’ information.
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25. Leasing of factory buildings by the Company to Weichai
Westport
Pursuant to the leasing agreement (as amended and supplemented by a
supplemental agreement dated 8 December 2014, collectively referred to
as the “Weichai Westport Leasing Agreement”) entered into between the
Company and Weichai Westport, the Company has agreed to lease
certain factory buildings to Weichai Westport for a term from 1 January
2015 to 31 December 2017. Upon expiry of the Weichai Westport
Leasing Agreement, the parties may renew the term for another three
years on a mutually agreed basis.

The annual cap for the aforesaid lease of certain factory buildings for the
year ended 31 December 2015 is RMB15 million. In the year ended 31
December 2015, the total rental income received by the Company from
Weichai Westport amounted to RMB10,552,660.

The annual cap for the aforesaid lease of certain factory buildings for the
term from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017 did not exceed the
0.1% threshold referred to in Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules, and,
accordingly, is not subject to the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The relevant terms and annual caps of the Weichai
Westport Leasing Agreement are disclosed herein for the Shareholders’
information.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions set out above and have confirmed that
these continuing connected transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or
on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors have issued an unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the above continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

In the letter the auditors have confirmed and stated that:
a. nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the

disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been approved by
the Company’s board of directors.
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b.  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group.

C. nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such transactions.

d. with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions set out above, nothing has come to their
attention that causes them to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap as approved by
the Company.

A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group entered into the
following connected transaction which was not exempt from the annual
review and disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Details of such connected transaction have been disclosed in compliance with
the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Entrusted loan agreement

On 13 February 2015, the Company entered into an entrusted loan agreement
with #S(ER)REAR AT (Weichai (Chongging) Vehicles Co., Ltd.) (the
"Borrower”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and Shandong
Finance, pursuant to which the Company, as lender, agreed to provide an
entrusted loan in the principal amount of RMB500 million for a term of 12
months, to the Borrower as borrower through Shandong Finance as lending
agent. Pursuant to the entrusted loan agreement, a handling fee was payable by
the Borrower to Shandong Finance for arranging the entrusted loan, which was
calculated at 0.05% of the aggregate principal amount of the entrusted loan.
The entrusted loan constituted a financial support provided by the Company to
its wholly-owned subsidiary, the Borrower, and the amount of the entrusted
loan was determined based on the Borrower's estimated funding needs for
project development and general working capital. The said entrusted loan was
fully repaid by the Borrower on 16 March 2016 pursuant to the terms of the
entrusted loan agreement.

Apart from the continuing connected transactions and connected transaction
disclosed above, all of the related party transactions as set out in Note X to the
financial statements of the Group do not constitute continuing connected
transactions or connected transactions of the Company which are required to
comply with the relevant annual review, disclosure or shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

EMOLUMENT PoLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”)
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Company participates in a defined contribution retirement insurance
scheme organized by the PRC municipal government for its PRC employees
and operates a mandatory provident fund scheme for its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a certain percentage of payroll costs
(PRC) and a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries (Hong Kong).

The Company’s pension cost charged to the income statement for the financial
year is set out in Note V. 29 to the financial statements.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements that enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of the PRC, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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INCOME TAX FOR H SHAREHOLDERS

According to the regulations in the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Implementation Regulations on Enterprise Income Tax Law
of People’s Republic of China which came into effect in 2008 and the Notice
of the State Administration of Taxation on Issues Relating to the Withholding
and Remittance of Enterprise Income Tax on Dividends Paid by Chinese
Resident Enterprises to Overseas Non-resident Enterprises which hold H Shares
(Guo Shui Han [2008] No. 897) ( (B HELE R B EMIFIMIIEE R K
RRERERMRHEEMEHEBRENBEN) (B H2008]18975F) )
issued by China’s State Administration of Taxation on 6 November 2008
(collectively, the “Tax Law"”), any domestic enterprise of the PRC which pays
dividends to non-resident enterprise shareholders (as defined in the Tax Law)
for the year of 2008 and thereafter shall withhold and remit enterprise income
tax with the payer as withholding agent. After receiving dividends, non-
resident enterprise shareholders may, where applicable, apply for tax refund
pursuant to relevant requirements under tax treaty (arrangement).

In accordance with the Tax Law, the Company is obliged to withhold and remit
enterprise income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of the non-resident
enterprise holders of H Shares whose names appear on the register of
members for H Shares of the Company on the Record Date when distributing
dividends to them. For holders of H Shares who are registered in the name of
non-natural person registered shareholders (including HKSCC (Nominees)
Limited, other corporate nominees, trustees, or other organisations or groups
which are all treated as “non-resident enterprise” shareholders) on the register
of members for H Shares of the Company on the Record Date, the Company
will distribute the cash dividends, after withholding for payment of 10%
enterprise income tax.

According to the Notice of the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Taxation on Certain Policies Regarding Individual Income Tax
(Caishui [1994] No. 20) (<BABED - BIR B F 42 BRARME A PTET A T BER R
REHERAN) (BITE[1994]5520%%) ), foreign individual resident shareholders
are exempt from personal income tax in respect of the dividends or bonus
received from domestic foreign invested enterprises for now. As the Company
is a foreign invested enterprise, for all natural person shareholders whose
names are registered on the register of members for H Shares of the Company
on the Record Date, the Company does not need to withhold personal income
tax. The Company shall obtain latest updates by consulting relevant tax
authorities in the PRC as and when appropriate.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

If anyone would like to change the identity of the holders in the register of
members, please enquire about the relevant procedures with the nominees or
trustees. The Company will withhold for payment of the enterprise income tax
for its non-resident enterprise shareholders strictly in accordance with the
relevant laws and requirements of the relevant government departments and
adhere strictly to the information set out in the Company’s register of
members on the Record Date.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales during the year under review attributable to the Group'’s
five largest customers were less than 30% of the Group's total sales.

The aggregate purchase during the year under review attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group's total
purchases.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year under review did a
director, a supervisor, an associate of a director or a shareholder of the
Company, which to the knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital, have an interest in any of the Group's five largest
suppliers or customers.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 30 March 2016, the 2015 profit distribution plan of the Company was
considered and approved at the third meeting of the fourth session of the
Board: the Company proposed the distribution to all shareholders of a cash
dividend of RMB1.00 (including tax) for every 10 shares held based on the
total share capital at 31 December 2015. Completion of the proposal is subject
to the consideration and approval by the 2015 Annual General Meeting.

ENVIRONEMENTAL POLICY AND ITS IMPLEMENTATION

The Group keeps itself updated with and ensures the strict compliance with all
such relevant environmental laws and regulations as applicable in the
respective jurisdictions. Meanwhile, all-rounded and comprehensive internal
management system and rules are in place to ensure the effective
implementation of relevant policies and regulations.
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During the year, the Group passed the ISO14001 environmental management
system certification. During the course of production, hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are also disposed of in a safe and efficient manner, without
polluting the environment. Pollutants so produced are in compliance with
national or local emission standards. The Group has never been included in any
list of highly-polluting enterprises by environmental authorities, nor has it been
penalized by any environmental authorities.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group keeps itself updated with and ensures the strict compliance with all
such relevant laws and regulations as applicable in the respective jurisdictions.
During the year, the Group has complied with all applicable relevant laws and
regulations in the respective jurisdictions in all material respects.

MAJOR RELATIONSHIPS INVOLVING THE GROUP

(1) Employees
In compliance with relevant laws and regulations in the respective
jurisdictions, and in strict adherence to the strategy of “People Come
First”, a safe and good working environment and experience as well a
sound system of remuneration and benefits is provided to employees to
attract, retain and motivate the employees. The management team and
staff team of the Group have been stable. During the year, the Group
considered that the relationship with its employees and the turnover rate
were acceptable.

(2) Suppliers

With mergers and reorganisation on a global basis and overseas market
expansion, the Group owns production factories in many nations and
regions and its suppliers are all over the world. Currently, the Group is in
the course of forming its global supply chain system. All major suppliers
have close and long-term relationship with the Group. During the year,
the Group considered that the relationship with suppliers was sound and
stable.

(3) Customers

With the “Objective of customer satisfaction”, the Group steadfastly
believes that “Quality is the most significant duty owed to customers”
and sees quality as a “life-changing” factor for an enterprise. Directed
by the strategic notion of “Directed by policy, sharing of channels and
achieving win-win development”, the Group focuses on enhancing
customer satisfaction and strenuously builds up the Weichai service
brand. During the year, the Group achieved 100% passing rate in all
provincial sample testing and entrusted examination. No significant
incidents of quality safety have occurred. The Group considered that the
relationship with assembling factories and users were sound and stable.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

(4) Society
With the notion of “Developing economy and service the community”,
the Group goes beyond its own growth to actively perform its social
responsibilities to contribute to society, spread its positive energy as a
corporation and strives to achieve win-win development vis-a — vis
society, gaining recognition from different sectors of society.

AuDIiT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises five
independent non-executive directors of the Company. The chairman of the
Audit Committee is Mr. Wang Gongyong, an independent non-executive
director. Mr. Wang has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules, for the purpose of this appointment. Throughout the year, the
Audit Committee discharged its responsibilities, reviewed and discussed the
financial results and internal control matters of the Company. In accordance
with the requirements of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules, the Audit
Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements for the
Year.

CoMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
IN APPENDIX 14 TO THE LISTING RULES

Throughout the year, other than the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer being performed by Mr. Tan Xuguang (“Mr. Tan”) and
directors not being able to attend all annual general meeting and extraordinary
general meetings due to other important work-related affairs, the Company
has complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

Mr. Tan is in charge of the overall management of the Company. The
Company considers that the combination of the roles of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer can promote the efficient formulation and
implementation of the Company'’s strategies which will enable the Group to
grasp business opportunities efficiently and promptly. The Company considers
that through the supervision of its board and its independent non-executive
directors, there is adequate balance of power and authority in place.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MoDeL CODE

During the year, the Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of all
directors, the directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code for the year under review.

SUFFICIENCY OF PuBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at the date of this
announcement.

AUDITORS

The Company appointed Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (Z/kZERA & 51D =75 AT
(BHEimAa%)) as the Company’'s only auditors with effect from 18 May
2011 for its accounts prepared under PRC accounting principles and financial
regulations. Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP (ZZ ik ZERR & RIS AT (R EAS
%)) will retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of the
Company for the year of 2016 will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited consolidated financial statements for the year were approved by
the Board on 30 March 2016.

PUBLICATION OF THE ANNUAL REPORT ON THE
WEBSITES OF THE HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE
AND THE COMPANY

The 2015 annual report will be despatched to the shareholders as well as
made available on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website at
www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at www.weichaipower.com in
due course.

On behalf of the Board

Tan Xuguang
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
30 March 2016
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE'S REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

During the period, in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Company
Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “Company Law"”) and the Articles
of Association of the Company and in compliance with the principle of
integrity, all members of the Supervisory Committee of the Company (the
“Supervisory Committee”) performed their duties of supervision with a view to
protecting shareholders’ interests in line with their accountability to all
shareholders. They monitored the operations and financial position of the
Company as well as the performance of the senior management of the
Company during the period. On behalf of the Supervisory Committee, | hereby
present our work report as follows:

OVERVIEW OF THE WORK OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE

I.  Details of convening the Supervisory Committee
In this year, the Company held six meetings of the Supervisory
Committee.

1. On 30 March 2015, the seventh meeting of the third session of
the Supervisory Committee was convened, during which the
Supervisory Committee considered and approved the full text and
summary of the 2014 annual report of the Company, the work
report of the Supervisory Committee for 2014, the financial report
and auditors’ report for 2014, the final financial report for 2014,
the financial budget report 2015, profit distribution proposal for
2014, the proposal for change of accounting policies, the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP as the Company’s
auditors for the year 2015, the re-appointment of Shandong Hexin
Accountants LLP as the internal control auditors of the Company
for the year 2015, the internal control self-evaluation report for
2014 and the internal audit report for 2014.

2. On 28 April 2015, the first provisional meeting of the Supervisory
Committee of the Company in 2015 was convened, during which
the Supervisory Committee considered and approved the 2015
first quarterly report of the Company. The contents of the report
gave a true, accurate and complete view of the actual situation of
the listed company and do not contain false statements,
misleading representations or material omissions.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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On 15 May 2015, the second provisional meeting of the
Supervisory Committee of the Company in 2015 was convened,
during which the Supervisory Committee considered and approved
the proposal for the election of non-staff representative supervisor
of the fourth session of Supervisory Committee of the Company.

On 30 June 2015, the first meeting of the fourth session of
Supervisory Committee of the Company was convened, during
which the chairman of the fourth session of Supervisory
Committee of the Company was elected.

On 27 August 2015, the second meeting of the fourth session of
the Supervisory Committee of the Company was convened, during
which the Supervisory Committee considered and approved the
full text and summary of the 2015 interim report of the Company
as well as the implementation of the 2015 interim profit
distribution proposal by the Company. The contents of the interim
report gave a true, accurate and complete view of the actual
situation of the listed company and do not contain false
statements, misleading representations or material omissions.

On 29 October 2015, the third provisional meeting of the
Supervisory Committee of the Company in 2015 was convened,
during which the Supervisory Committee considered and approved
the 2015 third quarterly report of the Company. The contents of
the report gave a true, accurate and complete view of the actual
situation of the listed company and do not contain false
statements, misleading representations or material omissions.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE 'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Independent opinion of the Supervisory Committee on
supervised matters of the Company in the reporting
period

Compliance of the Company’s operations with legal
requirements

During the period, pursuant to the laws and regulations of the
PRC and the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Supervisory Committee duly supervised the convening procedures
and resolutions of general meetings of Shareholders and meetings
of the Board, the Board’s execution of resolutions approved at
general meetings of shareholders, the performance of duties by
the senior management of the Company. The Supervisory
Committee is of the view that the Board and the senior
management of the Company performed their duties with
integrity and diligence, made decisions in a scientific approach,
maintained sound production and operation. The Supervisory
Committee was not aware of any action which would result in a
breach of laws or regulations or the Articles of Association of the
Company or would damage the interests of the Company and
investors in the Company.

Financial position of the Company

During the reporting period, the Supervisory Committee further
enhanced its internal control, especially the examination of the
financial system. The Company has established a sound system on
external investment, asset transfer and connected transactions,
etc. In its operation, the Company observed the relevant laws and
regulations of the PRC and the relevant provisions of the China
Securities Regulatory Commission. On the control of the
movement of funds and administrative expenses, the Company
strictly controlled on each grade which ensured the normal
operation of the Company and avoided financial risk.

The Supervisory Committee was of the view that the procedures
adopted by the Board in preparing and considering the annual
financial report of the Company are in compliance with the laws,
administrative regulations and stipulations of the China Securities
Regulatory Commission. The contents of the report gave a true,
accurate and complete view of the actual situation of the listed
company and do not contain false statements, misleading
representations or material omissions.

There was no use of proceeds this year.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Acquisition and disposal of assets of the Company
During the period, the Company’s acquisitions and disposals of
assets were conducted in such a way where the approval
procedures were lawful, at reasonable considerations, and under
effective decision-making, benefiting the integration of resources
of the Company and aligning with the Company’s development
strategies. No insider dealing or other actions which would
damage the interests of the shareholders or cause any asset loss
occurred or emerged.

Material connected transactions

During the period, the connected transactions of the Company
were conducted under the principle of fairness and the procedures
of the transactions were in compliance with laws and regulations.
The Supervisory Committee is not aware of any action which
would damage the interests of the Company and the shareholders.

The Supervisory Committee has no disagreement on the matters
supervised during the reporting period.

In 2016, the Supervisory Committee will continue to perform its supervisory
duties diligently for the protection of the interests of shareholders and the
Company in accordance with the Company Law and the Articles of Association
of the Company.

Lu Wenwu
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Weifang, Shandong Province
30 March 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has always regarded the consistent maintenance of an excellent,
solid and reasonable corporate governance structure as its top priority.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has reviewed its
corporate governance documents and is of the view that the Company has
fully complied with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Corporate Governance Code”) set out in the Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules other than Code A.2.1, which requires that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be two separate roles and should not be
performed by the same individual, and that certain directors of the Company
did not attend all of the Company’'s annual general meeting, extraordinary
general meeting, A shareholders’ class meeting and H shareholders’ class
meeting in 2015 as required under code provisions A.6.7 and E.1.2 of the
Corporate Governance Code due to other essential business engagements.
Currently, Mr. Tan Xuguang (“Mr. Tan") serves as the Chairman as well as the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Despite such deviation, the directors
believe that vesting such roles in Mr. Tan will allow for more effective planning
and execution of business strategies of the Company. As all major decisions
are made in consultation with other members of the Board, the Company
believes that there is adequate balance of power and authority in place.

The directors believe that the Articles of Association, the scope of
responsibilities of the Audit Committee, the scope of responsibilities of the
Supervisory Committee and the codes on securities dealings by directors and
certain executives, which constitute the basis for the regular codes on
corporate governance of the Company, have covered the principles and the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. In respect of the following
areas, our internal corporate governance documents are more stringent than
the Corporate Governance Code:

1. In addition to the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, the Company has also established the Strategic
Development and Investment Committee (the “SDIC").

2. All members of the Audit Committee are Independent Non-executive
Directors, of whom Mr. Wang Gongyong, the Chairman of the
committee, holds the relevant professional qualification or professional
knowledge related to accounting or financial management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include, among other things, formulating
the Company’s overall strategies, setting management targets, regulating
internal controls and financial management, and supervising the
management’s performance, while the day-to-day operations and
management are delegated by the Board to the executives of the Company.

The Board currently comprises 13 directors, whose details are set out on pages
27 to 31 of this annual report. The Board currently includes five executive
directors, three non-executive directors and five independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Tan Xuguang (Chairman and CEQ), Mr. Zhang Quan,
Mr. Xu Xinyu, Mr. Li Dakai and Mr. Sun Shaojun (Executive Directors), Mr.
Wang Yuepu, Mr. Jiang Kui and Mr. Gordon Riske (Non-executive Directors),
Mr. Loh Yih, Mr. Zhang Zhenhua, Mr. Zhang Zhong, Mr. Wang Gongyong and
Mr. Ning Xiangdong (Independent Non-executive Directors).

The Company has formulated and implemented a “Diversity Policy regarding
Members of the Board of Directors” to support the attainment of strategic
goals and the needs for sustainable development. The composition of the
Board of Directors will be based on a range of diversity elements, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, race,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. Final decisions
will be made based upon the merits of the individuals and his or her
contributions to be made to the Board of Directors.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers each of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

The Board has notified each of the directors and supervisors in advance that
they should not trade in the securities of the Company within the period as
stipulated under the Listing Rules. All directors and supervisors confirmed that
they were in compliance with the Listing Rules in this respect.

Other than their working relationships with the Company, none of the
directors, supervisors or the senior management has any financial, business or
family relationship or any relationship in other material aspects with each
other.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Other than the service contracts entered into by them or as otherwise disclosed
in this annual report, none of the directors or the supervisors has any personal
and substantive interest, direct or indirect, in the material contracts entered
into by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during 2015.

Each of the executive directors, non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors was appointed for a term from 30 June 2015 to the
conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company for the year ending
31 December 2017.

The Company attached great importance to the continuous professional
development of the directors and paid close attention to and actively
organized relevant trainings for the directors. Each of the directors of the
Company actively participated in various special trainings in respect to
corporate governance and directors’ responsibilities in full compliance with
Code A.6.5 of Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Hong Kong Listing Rules and regulatory requirements of the PRC.

In 2015, the Company held 13 Board meetings. The principal activities of the
Board in 2015 were as follows:

o Review of the annual and interim results of the Company;

. Review of the annual profit distribution, interim dividend and the 2014
final dividend distribution proposal;

o Consider and approve the amendments to the articles of association of
the Company;

o Consider and approve the provision of financial guarantee to subsidiaries,
entrusted loans and currency swap;

o Consider and approve connected transactions;

o Consider and approve the election of directors and members of
committees under the Board;

o Consider and approve the appointment and dismissal of senior
management personnel.

The total remuneration of the directors in 2015, including the basic salary,
performance-linked salary, performance-linked salary and discretionary bonus,
amounted to approximately RMB6 million. Independent non-executive directors
were only entitled to receive director’s fees but not other salary or
remuneration. For details of the remuneration of directors, please refer to Note
V.29 to the financial statements of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

AuDIT COMMITTEE
An Audit Committee has been established by the Board.

The Audit Committee is principally responsible for supervising the Company’s
internal audit system and its implementation, reviewing the Company’s internal
control system as well as auditing the major connected transactions and
proposing the engagement or removal of external auditor. It is also responsible
for the communications between the internal auditor and the external auditor
as well as review of financial information of the Company and the disclosure
thereof.

The Audit Committee comprises all the independent non-executive directors,
currently including Mr. Loh Yih, Mr. Zhang Zhenhua, Mr. Zhang Zhong, Mr.
Wang Gongyong and Mr. Ning Xiangdong. As Mr. Wang Gongyong has the
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in financial matters, he
acts as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are aligned with the recommendations set out in “A Guide
for Effective Audit Committees” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the reporting period. Details
of the attendance are set out on page 87 of this annual report.

The major work accomplished by the Audit Committee during the year are as
follows:

. Review of the annual, interim financial statements of the Group, as well
as the management recommendations furnished by the external auditors
and responses from the Company’s management;

o Review of the accounting policies and practices adopted by the Group
and related matters;

o Formulating independent directors’ opinions on connected transactions,
external guarantee and internal control self-evaluation report;

o Assist the Board to monitor the Group’s internal audit;

o Determine the remuneration of external audit service provider.
Throughout the period under review, the Audit Committee discharged its
responsibilities, reviewed and discussed the financial results and internal
control system of the Group.

In accordance with the requirements of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules, the

Audit Committee has reviewed the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The auditors of the Company have audited the financial statements and have
issued an unqualified auditors’ report.

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT
COMMITTEE

The Strategic Development and Investment Committee (“SDIC”) has been
established by the Board.

The SDIC is principally responsible for examining and reviewing the Company’s
strategic plans, monitoring the implementation of strategic planning, and
facilitating timely adjustments to the Company’s strategies and governance
structure.

The SDIC currently comprises Mr. Tan Xuguang (Chairman of the Board and of
the SDIC), Mr. Wang Yuepu, Mr. Zhang Quan, Mr. Xu Xinyu, Mr. Li Dakai, Mr.
Sun Shaojun and Mr. Zhang Zhenhua.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee has been established by the Board.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for the recommendation to the
Board of the remuneration packages and terms of employment of directors,
supervisors and senior management of the Company. The Committee also
determines the relevant remuneration policy for directors, supervisors and
senior management of the Company and matters relating to their participation
in incentive schemes operated by the Company.

During the reporting period, the Remuneration Committee of the Company
held one meeting. The first meeting of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company in 2015 was convened on 24 March 2015, during which the matters
regarding the operation incentives for senior management and core members
of the Company for year 2014 were reviewed. Mr. Tan Xuguang, Mr. Zhang
Zhong, Mr. Loh Yih, Mr. Chu, Howard Ho Hwa, all being directors, attended
this meeting of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one executive director and
two independent non-executive directors, being Mr. Zhang Zhong (chairman
of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Tan Xuguang and Mr. Loh Yih.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board.

During the reporting period, the Nomination Committee of the Company held
two meetings.

o On 11 May 2015, the first meeting of the Nomination Committee of the
Company in 2015 was convened, during which the committee
considered and approved the proposal for nominating candidates of
directorship for the fourth session of the Board, and the proposal for
nominating and appointing Mr. Dai Lixin as a vice president of the
Company.

. On 29 October 2015, the second meeting of the Nomination Committee
of the Company in 2015 was convened, during which the committee
considered and approved the proposal for nominating and appointing
Mr. Zhang Jiyuan as a vice president of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Zhong, Mr. Xu Xinyu, Mr. Zhang Zhenghua and Mr. Wang
Gongyong, representing all members of the Nomination Committee, attended
both meetings of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive directors and one executive director, including Mr. Zhang Zhong
(chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Xu Xinyu, Mr. Zhang Zhenhua
and Mr. Wang Gongyong. The meetings of the Nomination Committee were
arranged and held on an as-needed basis. The Nomination Committee will
identify qualified candidates to fill the Board’s membership whenever such
vacancy arises. It will also nominate such candidates for the Board to consider,
regularly review the composition of the Board and make suggestions as to any
change in the membership of the Board that may be required.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee consists of three members, with one Supervisor
being elected from the staff as a representative of employees and the other
two elected by the shareholders of the Company. The Supervisory Committee
is responsible for supervision of the Board and its members and the senior
management of the Company, so as to prevent them from abusing their
authorities and infringing the interests of the Company, its shareholders and
staff. The size and composition of the Supervisory Committee are in
compliance with the requirements of the relevant laws and regulations of the
PRC. The Supervisory Committee held six meetings during the year to carry out
its supervision on behalf of the shareholders in respect of the Company’s
financial matters and the lawfulness and compliance in respect of the
discharge of duties by the directors and senior management of the Company.
The members of the Supervisory Committee attended all Board meetings and
general meetings of the Company and diligently performed their supervisory
duties.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Attendances at meetings of the Board, Supervisory Committee and special
committees (attendance in person/number of meetings) during the year are as

PREIBCHRS (1&)

FR BEFE EFERBHZEEEEZN
HEEMMHRERE gFREONT :

follows:
General Supervisory Audit
Meeting Board Committee Committee

Name "2 BREAE EEg EEZg ERZEES
Executive Directors HITES
Tan Xuguang EER 2/4 13/13
Zhang Quan K R 3/4 13/13
Xu Xinyu ®EE 1/4 11130
Li Dakai =N 10/13®
Sun Shaojun HLE 10/130)
Fang Hongwei FHEMRZE-hF

(resigned on 6 July 2015) + AXNBET) 6/70
Non-executive Directors FHYTES
Wang Yuepu THE 1/4 12/130
Jiang Kui I = 3/4 12/130
Gordon Riske Gordon Riske 10/13®
Julius G. Kiss Julius G. Kiss(RZF— R F

(retired on 30 June 2015) NAZTAHEM 171 6/6
Han Xiaoqun BNBER-_ZE—RF

(retired on 30 June 2015) NA=ZTHRME) 6/6
Yeung Sai Hong BtmMN-_T—"F

(resigned on 6 July 2015) + ANHEME) 5/7@
Independent Non-executive Directors BAIXHITES
Loh Yih B % 2/4 13/13 4/4
Zhang Zhenhua o R 3/4 13/13 4a/4
Zhang Zhong R’ B 10/13® 4/4
Wang Gongyong TEER 3/4 12/13M 4/4
Ning Xiangdong O 2/4 12/130 4/4
Chu, Howard Ho Hwa REEWR-_T—AHF

(retired on 30 June 2015) NAZTHEMR 5/6 2/2
Supervisors E=x
Lu Wenwu BYH 4/4 6/6
Jiang Jianfang BEex 1/4 5/6
Ma Changhai ERER_ZT-—1fF

(appointed on 30 June 2015) NAZTHEM 22 33
Sun Chengping BEAFT(R-_ZE—A8F

(retired on 30 June 2015) NAZTBREMD 3/3
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According to the requirements under Code I(d) of the Corporate Governance
Code, the attendance of alternate directors shall not be included in the
attendance of the relevant directors.

Notes:

(1) In addition, the director or supervisor also appointed another director or supervisor as
his representative to attend and vote at one meeting of the board or meeting of the
supervisory committee on his behalf.

2) In addition, the director also appointed another director as his representative to attend
and vote at two meetings of the board on his behalf.

3) In addition, the director also appointed another director as his representative to attend
and vote at three meetings of the board on his behalf.

GENERAL MEETING AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The shareholders’ meeting is the highest authority of the Company, providing
an opportunity for direct communications and building a sound relationship
between the Board and the shareholders of the Company. Therefore, the
Company places great attention to such meetings. In 2015, the Company
convened four general meetings. Matters reviewed and approved at the said
meetings include the following:

I. EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING HELD oON 27
FEBRUARY 2015

(1) Ordinary resolutions

1.

To consider and approve the supply of base engines, gas
engine parts, utility and labour services, technology
development services and related products and services by
the Company (and its subsidiaries and/or associates) to
Weichai Power Westport New Energy Engine Co., Ltd.

To consider and approve the purchase of gas engines, gas
engine parts, labour services and related products and
services by the Company (and its subsidiaries and/or
associates) from Weichai Power Westport New Energy
Engine Co., Ltd.

To consider and approve the provision of logistics and
storage services by Weichai Power (Weifang) Intensive
Logistics Company Limited (and/or its associates) to Weichai
Power Westport New Energy Engine Co., Ltd.

To consider and approve the leasing of factory buildings by
the Company to Weichai Power Westport New Energy
Engine Co., Ltd.

(2) Special resolution

5.

88 WEICHAI PoWER Co., LTD.

To consider and approve the amendments to the articles of
association of the Company
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

IT. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING, A SHAREHOLDERS'’
CLASS MEETING AND H SHAREHOLDERS’ CLASS
MEETING HELD oN 30 JuNE 2015
(1)  Annual General Meeting

Ordinary resolutions:
1. To consider and approve the Annual Reports of the
Company for 2014

2. To consider and approve the Report of the Board of
Directors of the Company for 2014

3. To consider and approve the Report of the Supervisory
Committee of the Company for 2014

4. To consider and receive the financial statements of the
Company and the Auditors’ Report for 2014

5. To consider and approve the Bif&R&E R (final financial
report) of the Company for 2014

6.  To consider and approve the B #FE & R+ (financial budget
report) of the Company for 2015

7. To consider and approve the re-appointment of Ernst &
Young Hua Ming LLP (&K ERB AN =74 AT % T
A k) as the auditors of the Company for 2015 and to
authorise the Directors to determine their remuneration

8.  To consider and approve the re-appointment of || 3 A1 {2
g PR F K (R % & @ & K )(Shandong Hexin
Accountants LLP) as the internal control auditors of the
Company for 2015

9. To consider and approve the granting of a mandate to the
Board of Directors for payment of interim dividend to the
shareholders of the Company for 2015

10. To consider and approve the re-election of directors of the
Company

11.  To consider and approve the election of independent non-
executive directors of the Company

12. To consider and approve the election of non-staff-
representative supervisors to the fourth session of the
Supervisory Committee of the Company
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I1I.

IV.

90

(2)

3

Special resolutions:

13.  To consider and approve the profit distribution of the
Company for 2014

14. To consider and approve the amendments to certain terms
of the articles of association of the Company

15.  To consider and approve the granting of a general mandate
to the Board of Directors to issue new Shares

A Shareholders’ Class Meeting

Special resolution:

To consider and approve the profit distribution of the Company
for 2014

H Shareholders’ Class Meeting

Special resolution:

To consider and approve the profit distribution of the Company
for 2014

EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING HELD ON 27
AugcusTt 2015

Ordinary resolution

To consider and approve the issue of the bonds by an overseas wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and the grant of guarantee by the
Company

EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING HELD ON 18
NovVEMBER 2015

Ordinary resolutions

1.

WEICHAI PoWER Co., LTD.

To consider and approve the purchase of parts and components of
transmissions and related products by Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.
from Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd.

To consider and approve the sale of parts and components of
transmissions and related products by Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.
to Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders of the Company holding more than 10% of the shares of the
Company either individually or collectively requesting the convening of an
extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting shall proceed in accordance
with the procedures set forth in Article 104 of the Company’s articles of
association.

Pursuant to Article 76 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
shareholders of the Company who hold, individually or collectively, more than
3% of the Company’s shares shall have the right to propose a motion to the
Company for consideration at the general meeting of the Company.
Shareholders who hold, individually or collectively, more than 3% of the
Company’s shares may propose a provisional motion in writing to the Board of
Directors 16 days prior to the general meeting. Within two days upon the
receipt of the proposed motion, the Board of Directors shall issue a
supplementary notice of the general meeting to announce the content of the
provisional motion.

Shareholders of the Company are welcome to send their enquiries to the
Board via our Securities Department, details of which are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Information” in this annual report.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE
CANDIDATES FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

Pursuant to the requirement of the articles of association of the Company, any
shareholder who, by itself or jointly, holding shares representing more than
3% of the voting rights of the Company for 180 days or more consecutively
shall have the right to nominate candidates for director, the number of
directors in each nomination shall not exceed one-fifth of the total number of
directors and the total number of nominees. The number of shares directly or
indirectly held by each shareholder cannot be further subdivided in order to
propose a motion by himself or jointly with other persons.

The period for service of notices in writing by shareholders to the Company of
the intention to propose a candidate for election as a director in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company and of such candidate’s
consent to be elected shall be at least 7 days, which shall commence from the
day after the despatch of the notice convening the general meeting for the
election of directors and shall end on the date which is 16 days prior to the
date of such general meeting.

PREIBCHRS (1&)

A% &R & i
EBHAHBEAEARNRT0%A EBEHHAD
AIRREZRBERRIFHIARERERRES
HOREEBALAANAAERE104EAEH
12 7P e o

REBARBDNRBERET6N  EFRA H
FEARABZR U EBROOARRABRER B#
RERBBRRAREG EMARRIRBHREAE
EZER-EBKEAHFTAARARAZIR N LEMNA
ARABRR AR ERRARE AMI6H A2
HERRERRITEEARREFE -EFTTRE
ERFREE2AAEEBRRAGHETABS

NREBRBREENHAR

BOARABRREBESFTMEETSRES
BB ERAFEREIRRER—F-

RRREAEZESEESHNER

KIBRARIERRE SEHEIBORALEBSEA
DA R AE RREBRD3%IA LB BRER A
NRZEEREAN B-—REAUREZTEA
PREFhH— BETFEBBHEE AZ
MIREAZHE - BERREEZENHEEFAN
BT ELFBETRERMAKBR LR

-
EL

ERARREEBEARERNRERN QA ZELD
FRRZEEREANTENEEBANNUL
BREAXRAEEEIREANENRANANZE
HRHA/TIXR RAAGRENEBANHRS
BRELHEANERESTMARANBRREREDN
BAMRXBRAR ERBE-RABRRAER
FlE KA ATI6K °

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 £E#R 91



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLE OF ASSOCIATION

In line with the development of the Company’s business and as approved by
the shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on
27 February 2015, the Company made certain amendments to the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles”) in relation to the scope of business
of the Company and also certain consequential changes to the amendment
history of the Articles. The amended Article 13 in relation to the scope of
business of the Company is as follows:

“The scope of business of the Company shall be subject to the items approved
by the relevant companies registration authorities.

The scope of business of the Company includes: the design, development,
manufacture, sales, maintenance and import and export of the internal
combustion engines, new energy powertrain systems and supplemental
products, leasing of self-owned properties, sales of steel materials, provision of
the service of enterprise management.

The Company shall conduct its business activities within the scope of business
approved by the relevant companies registration authorities.”

Further, as approved by the shareholders of the Company at the 2014 annual
general meeting, the class meeting of the holders of A Shares and the class
meeting of the holders of H Shares on 27 February 2015, consequential to the
issue of 1,513,549,639 new A Shares and 485,760,000 new H Shares to the
shareholders of the Company in 21 August 2015, certain articles of the Articles
have been amended to reflected the changes in the registered capital and the
issued share capital of the Company as a result of such bonus shares issue,
and also to reflect certain consequential changes to the amendment history of
the Articles.

Please refer to the circulars of the Company dated 7 January 2015 and 15 May
2015 for further details on the above amendments to the Articles.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining an adequate system of
internal control to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests.

Internal control, including a defined management structure with limits of
authority, is designed to help achieve business objectives, safeguard assets
against unauthorised use, maintain proper accounting records for the provision
of reliable financial information for internal use or for publication. The purpose
of such system is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material mis-statement or loss, and to manage, rather than eliminate, risks of
failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group’s objectives.
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The management maintains and monitors the system of controls on an
ongoing basis.

During the year, based on the evaluations made by the management, the
Audit Committee was satisfied that nothing had come to its attention to cause
the Audit Committee to believe that the system of internal control was
inadequate, and there is an ongoing process to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks faced by the Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MoDeL CoODE

During the year, the Company adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard
set out in the Model Code for Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).
Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for
the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors aim to present the financial statements of the Group in
accordance with the statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The directors ensure that financial statements of the Group are
issued in a timely manner so that the final and interim results of the Group are
announced within the periods of three months and two months, respectively,
after the end of the relevant periods prescribed under the Listing Rules.

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and audited by the external
auditors, Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP. The directors acknowledge their
responsibilities for preparing the financial statements of the Group and
presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the Group's
performance and prospects. They are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast doubt upon the ability of the
Company to continue as a going concern. The statement of the Auditors about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company has engaged Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP as auditors of the
Company. For the year ended 31 December 2015, an amount of RMB12.6
million was paid/payable to Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP for their audit
service.
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AUDITORS  REPORT

EY:

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2016) Shen Zi No. 60729920 _B01

To the Shareholders of Weichai Power Co., Ltd.:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Weichai Power Co.,

Ltd. which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31

December 2015, the consolidated and company income statements, statement
of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year 2015 and notes to
the financial statements.

I.

IT.

94

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Weichai Power Co., Ltd. is responsible for
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements. Such
responsibility includes: (1) preparation of the financial statements in
accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
to ensure fair representation; (2) the design, implementation and
maintenance of necessary internal controls so that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or
error.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CERTIFIED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Chinese Auditing Standards issued by the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements of the Chinese Certified Public Accountants and plan and
perform the audit to obtain a reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

WEICHAI PoWER Co., LTD. 48 HBRMNBERLAD
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AubpiToRS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

I1I.

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2016) Shen Zi No. 60729920 _B01

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the certified public accountant’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, certified public accountants consider the internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and
present fairly, in all material aspects, the consolidated and company
financial position as at 31 December 2015 and the consolidated and
company results of operations and cash flows of Weichai Power Co., Ltd.
for the year 2015.

Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP
Beijing, PRC

Chinese Certified Public Accountant:

Zhang Fei

Chinese Certified Public Accountant:

You Jin

30 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

B f#

aE8E%

—E-AFf+A=1+—H(AREK¥T)

Note V 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
ASSETS gE MiEER 2015%12H31H 201412 A318
Current assets MBEE
Cash and cash equivalents BEES 1 24,601,345,959.52 24,434,414,214.89
Financial assets at fair value through AR EEEAHES
profit or loss STAE BB
SREE 2 37,867,082.40 66,996,021.60
Notes receivable e 3 8,927,939,101.91 13,780,880,376.52
Accounts receivable FEUBRK 4 8,976,615,257.47 9,660,031,602.65
Prepayments B HIE 5 401,642,433.45 487,985,072.32
Interests receivable JEUH B 6 53,906,611.07 134,246,230.24
Dividends receivable FEURZF 7 6,480,000.00 3,040,000.00
Other receivables Hofth TR 8 645,771,489.45 871,642,626.76
Inventories e 9 11,841,614,673.51 12,614,740,002.08
Classified as available-for-sale assets D EREFENEE - 35,770,735.32
Non-current assets due within one year —FREHNIERBEE 10 1,289,424,886.40 1,509,870,834.00
Other current assets HitREEE 11 970,236,409.05 772,177,588.25
Total current assets MEEEST 57,752,843,904.23 64,371,795,304.63
Non-current assets FEREEE
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 12 650,293,280.51 431,617,288.51
Long-term receivables R EAE KGR 13 3,348,884,733.60 2,574,098,089.20
Long-term equity investments RERERE 14 1,447,150,166.18 1,477,725,658.30
Investment property BEMEHE 15 588,890,842.52 522,163,315.32
Fixed assets BEBE 16 23,665,762,793.11 23,509,392,694.25
Construction in progress FRTRE 17 2,589,410,278.91 3,421,243,155.61
Materials used in construction IEYE 1,200.00 2,692.31
Disposal of fixed assets BEEBERE 1,846,883.91 1,965,332.73
Intangible assets B EE 18 12,860,379,962.34 13,842,471,750.91
Development expenditure HEYH 19 466,068,766.97 533,706,390.76
Goodwill EES 20 7,786,251,491.45 7,774,054,477.18
Long-term prepaid expenses REFHER 21 314,381,969.58 168,785,139.70
Deferred tax assets RIEFTSMEE 22 3,152,666,737.05 3,453,989,113.43
Other non-current assets HiEReEE 23 248,554,796.59 172,564,779.00
Total non-current assets RBEEALT 57,120,543,902.72 57,883,779,877.21
Total assets BEME 114,873,387,806.95  122,255,575,181.84
The financial statements have been signed by: BBHmERBUTALEZE

Legal Representative:

EERRA

Tan Xuguang
B

96 WEICHAI

Principal in charge of accounting:
TEEHTIEARA

Kwong Kwan Tong
RRIE =

Power Co., LTD. #EXRENBRMERLT

Head of accounting department:

SEHHBRRA

Wang Junwei
FER



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

fg‘ % ( fig )

T-A=+—H(AR®TT)

Note V 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BEMRFESR MR 2015%12A31H 2014512 831H
Current liabilities biEI=EE
Short-term loans K ERfE TR 24 2,961,108,213.46 2,765,864,402.35
Financial liabilities at fair value AR EBGTEAEES
through profit or loss STAEHEEN
Ga=lit 25 92,014,803.10 76,807,591.20
Notes payable APES 26 5,283,915,078.21 10,867,683,844.51
Accounts payable FERTRRTR 27 14,264,753,447.71 15,922,080,225.78
Advances from customers TEWFIE 28 1,637,474,054.56 1,479,206,814.82
Payroll payable JRE 1<} B %5 29 3,129,536,423.85 3,115,024,045.45
Taxes payable [ERFIE 30 1,235,566,698.13 1,249,956,877.43
Interests payable FEREF S 31 208,738,518.56 196,311,317.66
Dividends payable FET A 32 5,129,313.52 34,772,276.45
Other payables H i FE{I5R 33 3,786,905,225.80 4,235,819,685.51
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FREHOERS A E 34 5,246,338,509.59 5,634,124,985.20
Other current liabilities Hine B & 35 2,018,326,655.18 2,482,364,929.13
Total current liabilities mEEREE 39,869,806,941.67 48,060,016,995.49
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Long-term borrowings REIER 36 7,283,743,346.45 7,271,880,584.20
Bonds payable R ESH 37 5,985,529,194.60 5,834,582,252.32
Long-term payables REFERR 38 6,604,099,856.80 5,185,606, 146.40
Long-term payroll payable R EARE 58 T A 39 6,928,175,204.92 7,073,983,911.20
Special payables BIERER 40 43,000,000.00 43,000,000.00
Provision BEtAE 41 286,177,796.80 444,249,381.60
Deferred income EEM 42 2,279,402,483.75 1,983,761,896.93
Deferred tax liabilities EEMEHAE 22 3,825,631,719.50 4,384,956,540.33
Other non-current liabilities Hib3ERBaE 41,337,675.89 31,649,140.04
Total non-current liabilities ERHEESE 33,277,097,278.71 32,253,669,853.02
Total liabilities BELE 73,146,904,220.38 80,313,686,848.51
The financial statements have been signed by: WIEMKRBIATALTEE

Legal Representative:

EERRA TEEFIEREA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong
BIEYE B

Principal in charge of accounting:

Head of accounting department:

SEHEREA

Wang Junwei

T&E
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

SHEERBXR(E)

—E-AFf+A=1+—H(AREK¥T)

Note V 31 December 2015
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EEMRRES fiEER 2015%12H318
Shareholders’ equity e
Share capital e 43 3,998,619,278.00
Capital reserve YN 44 27,883,109.16
Other comprehensive income Hipar s et 45 (502,508,673.78)
Special reserve HIEFE 46 78,839,437.56
Surplus reserve YN 47 1,207,988,900.22
Retained earnings RO ELAE 48 26,918,633,619.95

31 December 2014
2014%12A31H

1,999,309,639.00
1,288,252,938.51
(388,485,902.69)
51,026,772.11
3,051,742,591.19
26,397,531,915.03

Total equity attributable to the shareholders

of the parent

BERERRBRESAF

31,729,455,671.11

32,399,377,953.15

Minority interests DER R 9,997,027,915.46 9,542,510,380.18
Total shareholders’ equity REEREE 41,726,483,586.57 41,941,888,333.33
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity B EMR R ERART 114,873,387,806.95  122,255,575,181.84

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EERRA

Tan Xuguang

EB
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WEICHAI PowER Co.,

LTD.

Principal in charge of accounting:

FEETIEEEA

Kwong Kwan Tong
RRIE =

AR NBRMERLAT

BEIRRAATALERS

Head of accounting department:

SEREBEEA

Wang Junwei
FiEE



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

B fFmliE%

—E-AFE(ARKT)

Note V 2015 2014
i il 20154 20144
Revenue BEWA 49 73,719,915,760.01 79,637,161,537.13
Less: Cost of sales B EERA 49 56,760,116,064.47 62,618,910,510.49
Taxes and surcharges EED S KK 50 184,072,487.97 266,085,495.56
Distribution and selling expenses HEBH 51 6,246,169,457.81 5,092,578,585.64
General and administrative expenses EEER 52 7,173,821,367.35 6,426,873,646.46
Finance expenses B S 53 485,837,186.81 23,084,727.66
Impairment loss of assets BERERL 54 383,379,700.70 275,398,913.11
Add: Gain or loss on change of fair value m: AR EEZEE 55 (23,353,073.10) (156,271,038.41)
Investment income RE W 56 114,954,618.74 1,714,840,638.18
Incl: investment income from Hep : Hg 2
associates and jointly BETZE
controlled enterprises R E W 32,180,889.65 103,753,902.61
Operating profit EEFIE 2,578,121,040.54 6,492,799,257.98
Add: Non-operating income o EEINRA 57 693,623,096.77 509,921,941.27
Incl: Gain on disposal of Hep: FngyEE
non-current assets BEFR 66,967,177.83 40,801,757.28
Less: Non-operating expenses W EEINT 58 188,324,265.84 134,273,707.02
Incl: Loss on disposal of Hep: EngyEE
non-current assets BER/X 26,387,889.76 57,486,612.73
Total profit MiEmeE 59 3,083,419,871.47 6,868,447,492.23
Less: Income tax expenses W TS™ER 60 920,745,741.27 1,150,243,529.42
Net profit N 2,162,674,130.20 5,718,203,962.81
Net profit attributable to the shareholders FEBNE AR
of the parent EAE 1,390,576,941.23 5,002,427,212.65
Minority interests LEBRR B 772,097,188.97 715,776,750.16

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EEREA -

Tan Xuguang
EBY

Principal in charge of accounting:

EFEESHIIEEEA

Kwong Kwan Tong
BREE

BARSMERBIA T AL RE

Head of accounting department:

SEHEEEA

Wang Junwei
F&E
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
Year 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Afﬁ :ﬁl.l Iri%E ( mE)
—E-nFE(ARKT)

Note V 2015 2014
gl 20155 20144
Net other comprehensive income after tax Hifr e W mEig FE
Net other comprehensive income attributable to E'J%BQE AR E fr 4R &
shareholders of the parent after tax W E AR 18558 (114,022,771.09) (370,524,964.48)
Those other comprehensive income not to be PCIN: = pap g Bt
reclassified into profit or loss in subsequent H s A Ut
periods
Changes arising from re-measuring net assets or Bt B R E T st2
net liabilities of defined benefit plan FEENFEENE 18,752,496.53 (308,340,448.45)
Share of investee’s other comprehensive income R NI E BTG
not to be reclassified into profit or loss using ENfEEENEMERS
the equity method W F=aHnHeE 5,240,567.93 (162,692,384.76)
Those other comprehensive income to be LA i E D SR A E At
reclassified into profit or loss iRE Wes
Share of investee’s other comprehensive income — #Ex)% NERIR S BA
to be reclassified into profit or ENHEETENEMSE
loss using the equity method W T Z B MNE 7,779,405.56 64,610,512.58
Change of fair value of available-for-sale financial ~ AJ{tHE S RIEE
assets DR BEZS 2,380,000.00 39,440,000.00
Effective portion of cashflow from ReneEHTAN
hedging instrument BRE D 10,823,089.03 (6,420,300.47)
Exchange differences on foreign SNEATSHRRINTE
currency translation =58 (158,998,330.14) 2,877,656.62
Net other comprehensive income attributable to FBEBNDERERNEAM
minority owners after tax AWM NT%FE (15,335,441.49) (1,042,984,578.07)
Total comprehensive income frA e B R 2,033,315,917.62 4,304,694,420.26
Incl: Hep
Total comprehensive income attributable )N SYNET &)
to the shareholders of the parent N e Lt 1,276,554,170.14 4,631,902,248.17
Total comprehensive income attributable FENDERRN
to minority owners RG] 756,761,747.48 (327,207,827.91)
Earnings per share Tk 61
Basic earnings per share EARGR 03577 1.257T
Diluted earnings per share mEG K= 03577 1.257T
The financial statements have been signed by: WIEHMEREATALESE

Legal Representative:

EERERA FEGFILIEEEA

Tan Xuguang
BB

Kwong Kwan Tong

FEE
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Principal in charge of accounting:

Head of accounting department:

SEHEEAEA

Wang Junwei
F&E



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2015

—F-nFE(AE%T)

20154

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent

£ 1 AR SR 25 8

xR

BRABATRRER
Other
Share Capital ~ comprehensive Special Surplus Retained Minority
Note V capital reserve income reserve reserve earnings Subtotal IEE Total equity
Hi B& FUIN | EfauE SRR BRAR RAEAE Mt JERREE  BRESAH
. Atheginning of year, before - FEIAEENHE
adjustment 1999,309,639.00 128825293851  (342,209472.70) 51,026,772.11  3,051,742,591.19  26,419,607,05645 32,467,729524.56  8,386,683,156.04  40,854,412,680.60
1. Adustment for the 1. LEAKEE
apportionment of consideration AERE
of the business combination - - (46,276,429.99) - - (07514142 (68351,57141)  1155,827,204.14  1,087,475,652.73
Il Atbeginning of year, after = BBEREERE
adjustment 1999,300,639.00  1288,252,93851  (388,485,902.69) 51,026,772.11  3,051,742,591.19  26,397,531915.03  32,399,377,953.15  9,542,510,380.18  41,941,888,333.33
Il Movements in current year = REERRELE
() Total comprehensive revenue () EAkzes - - (114022,771.09) - - 139057694123 1,276554,170.04  756,761,747.48  2,033,315917.62
(1) Injection and recuction () REBRARRLER
1. Capital inection from 1. BREAEA
shareholders - - - - - - - 152,721,584.46 152,721,584.46
2. Amount of share-based 2. RAZAHA
payment taken to owners' fitaEn
equity HeE u - 985,150.78 - - - - 985,150.78 1,590,406.82 2,575,557.60
3. Acquistion of minoriy 3 REOHRR
interests 3 4 - (1,261,738,455.38) - - (1328086282 - (1,275,019,318.20) 54,162,162.07  (1,220,857,156.13)
4. Disposal of minority 4 FRIEER
interests B4 - - - - - - - (19,045,948.65)  (79,045,948.65)
5. Others 5. Hi - 383,475.25 - - - - 383,475.25 (73,161.89) 310,31336
(1) Profit appropriation (2)HiEAR
1. Appropriation to surplus 1. RRESLE
reserve - - - - 16883681085  (168,836,810.85) - - -
2. Distrbution to owners 2 HRRADE 4 - - - - - (69975837365)  (699,75837365)  (441420,24188) (1,141,178,615.53)
3. Appropriation o staff 3 FRBTRHES
benefit fund - - - - - (880,051.81) (880,051.81) (293,350.60) (1.173.402.41)
(V) Internal transfer of owners' (m) FEEERnDEE
equiy
1. Capitalization of surplus 1. BRABEEER
reserve 1999,309,639.00 - - - (1,999,309,639.00) - - - -
(V) Spedal resenve (7)) E6E
1. Appropriation during the 1. RERR
Jear 16 - - - 78,605,603.31 - - 78,605,603.31 3244982623 111,055,429.54
2. Used during the year 2 RERR 4 - - - (50,792,937.86) - - (50792,93786)  (233548876)  (73,12842662)
V. Atend of year B REERRE 3,998,619,278.00 27,883,109.16  (502,508,673.78) 78,839437.56  1,07,988,900.22 26,918,633,619.95 31,729,455,671.11  9,997,027915.46  41,726,483,586.57

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Tan Xuguang
B

Principal in charge of accounting:

EFEEHIEAEA

Kwong Kwan Tong
e

BEIHRKRANATALES

Head of accounting department:

SEHEBRRA

Wang Junwei
FER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQuIiTY (CONTINUED)

Year 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

SHRREDZLEER(E)

—F-nFE(AE%T)

2014 20144
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent
SERBLATRTER
Other
Share Capital comprehensive Special Surplus Retained Minority
Note V capita [ESeve Income EServe TEserve eamings Subtotal Interests Total equity
Hia & BADE Aftsaka B BHLE FARHE UG HYRzRS e
. Atbeginning of year - REENRE 199930963900 758458,887.62 (17,960938.21) 3560588068  2,683223,33461 2226453681892  27,723,173631.62  6,604,137,739.77  34,327,311,371.39
Il Movements in curtent year o REERENLE
(1) Total comprehensive revenue () GaksaE o - (370,524,964.48) - - 500242721265  4631,902,24817  (327,007827.91)  4,304,694,420.26
(1) Inection and reduction () REBAR
1. Capitalinjecton from 1. BREARA
sharefolders - - - - - - - 57308418600  573,084,186.00
2. Minorty nterests and ofhers 2 WEEENE
arsing from acquisition PSR - - - - - - - 31123660448  3,112,366,044.86
3. Acquistion of minority 3. W EiR
intrests & - (107,603,890.24) - - - - (10760389024 (120504582.29)  (228,10847253)
4. Others 4 £t = 449258846 = = = = 449258846 (4,656,798.64) (164,210.18)
(i) Proft appropriation (E)HErE
1. Appropriation to surplus 1. ROEHLNE
resene - - - - 3851925658 (368519,256.58) - - -
2. Distribution to owners ). HREAAE 4 - - - - - (499827409.75)  (499.827.40975)  (301898699.23)  (801,726,108.98)
3. Amount of share-based 3. REBT
payment taken to owners' BiEs
equiy - o o = = (1,085,45021) (1,085,450.21) (361,816.74) (1,447,266.95)
(V) Specia reserve (m) E5RE
1. Appropriation during the 1. KERE
year 46 - - - 72,481,73851 - - 7248173851 2935934785 101,841,086.36
2. Used during the year 2. RERR 4 - - - (57,060856.08) - - (5706085608 (2180721349)  (78868,069.57)
V) Others ()24
1. Put options in relation to 1. BOURRER
minoriy interests FEnHEsE u - 6329053567 - - - - 63290535267 - 63290535267
. Atend of year = KEERBE 199930963900  1,288,252,93851  (388485,902.69) 5102677211 3051,742,591.19  26397,531,915.03  32,399,377,953.15  9,542,510,380.18  41,941,888333.33

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EERRA

Tan Xuguang
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

BHIRERER

—E-AFE(ARKT)

2015
201545

Note V
MsER

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING -

ACTIVITIES
Cash received from sales of goods
or rendering of services
Refunds of taxes
Other cash received relating to

CETREEERNIRS
M=

HEmm - RIS
K EIH3R &
IR ERE

U Bl E A B4 R &

]]

=

2014
20144

71,770,083,178.53
343,603,353.37

66,632,884,191.79
369,141,764.89

operating activities BRENRE 62 1,459,737,223.39  1,268,659,937.08
Subtotal of cash inflows from LETEENIHSIRA
operating activities a5y 73,573,423,755.29  68,270,685,893.76
Cash paid for goods and services BEAM  BXE5H
XNHBRE 41,629,895,751.63  36,313,007,425.27
Cash paid to and on behalf of SR T AR &
employees BIXMORE 14,271,423,123.82 9,910,533,344.12
Cash paid for all types of taxes X EEHE 3,219,274,155.73 3,655,288,157.46
Other cash paid relating to ST Bt B R &)
operating activities BRENRE 62 7,678,928,731.45  7,220,128,685.89

Subtotal of cash outflows from
operating activities

L TEENIE T
/NEF

66,799,521,762.63

57,098,957,612.74

Net cash flows from operating REEHELNRS

activities MEFER 63 6,773,901,992.66  11,171,728,281.02

Il.  CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING = BREEIDERES

ACTIVITIES meE
Cash received from sale of investments Hﬁl@%ﬁ;ﬁﬂﬁlﬁ'mﬁ@ 188,000,000.00 423,000,000.00
Cash received from return B E W R A

on investments fﬁ% 166,277,959.70 166,984,772.24
Net cash received from disposal of BETARIREMESE

subsidiaries and other business units
Net cash received from disposal of

BB U B IR 55 ER
BREREEE - &P

63 47,393,959.31

37,114,595.50

fixed assets, intangible assets BEMEMRIEE

and other long-term assets W Bl §ER & 5E 674,466,070.10 418,706,669.33
Other cash received relating to WS E o B24% &R B

investing activities BENRE 62 64,828,590.00  1,291,374,555.83
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing REZSRESAA

activities et 1,140,966,579.11  2,337,180,592.90
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed BEETEE B

assets, intangible assets and BEMEMRREE

other long-term assets XMRE 4,345,336,993.62  3,309,695,720.50
Cash paid for acquisition of investments REAXMNNRES 383,290,684.00  1,153,788,708.38
Net cash paid for acquisition of 13 EE S NCIPSE Tk S

subsidiaries and other business units B fTHREFE 63 476,585,898.00 =
Other cash paid relating to SR B AR B

investing activities BENES 62 50,733,202.27 3,456,179.58
Subtotal of cash outflows from REEERE R

investing activities Nat 5,255,946,777.89  4,466,940,608.46
Net cash flows used in KEFESFEANES

investing activities B (4,114,980,198.78)  (2,129,760,015.56)
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CoNSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Year 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

SHIREREXR(1E)
—E-AFE(ARKT)

Note V 2015 2014
(D= 20154 20144

. CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING = BAELRDEANRS
ACTIVITIES i
Cash received from capital contributions R E W E IR 152,721,584.46 573,084,186.00
Incl: Cash received by subsidiaries B - FRARK
from capital contributions DERRIRE
of minority owners etk 152,721,584.46 573,084,186.00
Cash received from borrowings HRSERKE RS 11,535,722,867.85  4,303,541,423.50
Cash received from issuance of bonds BTEFREINIRS 2,522,317,954.03 -
Other cash received relating to WS H i BRES 5 R B
financing activities HENRE 62 162,208,242.00 20,459,879.10
Subtotal of cash inflows from EEFHHRESR/A
financing activities N 14,372,970,648.34  4,897,085,488.60
Cash repayments of borrowings BRBEHXNHRES 13,095,797,782.00  8,302,541,040.65

Cash paid for distribution of dividends

BRI ~ R ER

or profits and for interest expenses FMEZHHRE 1,967,896,762.46 1,586,525,262.34
Incl: Cash paid to minority owners He - FRAZHE
for distribution of dividends DEAREE
or profits by subsidiaries B~ FiE 497,486,749.43 310,227,634.54
Other cash paid relating to financing XNHMEREEEE
activities BENRE 62 1,484,892,035.23 74,942,293.80
Subtotal of cash outflows from S5 EHHRLME
financing activities NEt 16,548,586,579.69 9,964,008,596.79
Net cash flows used in EETHFANRE
financing activities MEFER (2,175,615,931.35)  (5,066,923,108.19)
IV. EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE - GE RSB
RATE ON CASH RENTE 36,342,024.54 (77,368,335.05)
V. NET INCREASE IN CASH AND - RekReEED
CASH EQUIVALENTS IR IR 519,647,887.07  3,897,676,822.22
Add: Cash and cash equivalents m: FPReRES
at beginning of year FEMEE 20,494,618,118.42  16,596,941,296.20
VI. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RN FRESRREEED
AT END OF YEAR BRER 63 21,014,266,005.49  20,494,618,118.42
The financial statements have been signed by: WIEHMERAATALES

Legal Representative:

EERRA

Tan Xuguang
EIGE
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BALANCE SHEET

31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

aE8E%

—E-AFf+A=1+—HAREKT)

Note XV 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
ASSETS BE fE+h 2015%12A31H 2014512 A31H
Current assets MENEE
Cash and cash equivalents ERES 1 12,447,686,804.26 13,471,590,469.50
Notes receivable B E % 6,890,636,874.68 9,387,204,158.36
Accounts receivable FEUER R 640,602,324.45 1,026,365,645.31
Prepayments TERFIE 56,961,089.44 52,697,084.17
Interests receivable FEULF & 51,793,725.00 133,399,138.89
Dividends receivable JEUS A A 3,060,000.00 34,167,062.06
Other receivables H i R 4 1,872,128,429.70 1,863,144,593.87
Inventories s 1,337,322,763.36 1,952,477,318.55
Other current assets HiRBEE 146,838,123.25 -
Total current assets mEEEAE 23,447,030,134.14 27,921,045,470.71
Non-current assets FEMENEE
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESmEE 284,880,000.00 282,080,000.00
Long-term equity investments RERRIER A 67 10,020,852,579.69 10,055,462,694.26
Investment property BEMEHE 1,143,364,666.55 993,797,538.54
Fixed assets TAE 2,644,294,727.19 2,620,753,452.52
Construction in progress FRTRE 1,460,455,895.55 1,680,803,418.53
Disposal of fixed assets BEEEERE 83,797.19 244,955.71
Intangible assets B ARE 10 330,215,232.45 335,448,373.29
Goodwill e 579,145,043.76 579,145,043.76
Long learn prepaid expense REAGHER 4,566,838.00 7,057,834.00
Deferred tax assets REFERERE 215,366,868.45 319,596,572.97
Other non-current assets HitEmENEE 481,925,368.89 383,161,196.00
Total non-current assets EREEESE 17,165,151,017.72 17,257,551,079.58
Total assets BE@E 40,612,181,151.86 45,178,596,550.29

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Tan Xuguang
BIEY

Principal in charge of accounting:

FEEHIIEAEA

Kwong Kwan Tong
BRI =

AR HIA T AL R

Head of accounting department:

SEHEEREA

Wang Junwei
F&E
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BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED) SEaRldER(E)
31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) —E—AF+_A=F+—H(AR® )
Note XV 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BEMRFES fE+h 2015512 A31H 2014512 A31H
Current liabilities mEBE
Notes payable ERRE 2,555,177,304.09 6,095,957,306.04
Accounts payable JFERTERER 3,299,797,871.61 4,426,815,259.81
Advances from customers TEUWRIE 20,789,783.81 35,614,863.96
Payroll payable R A<F B8 T 5 1 471,742,106.21 542,818,361.66
Taxes payable ﬁ;&iﬁfa;%; 12 38,446,967.23 183,907,771.93
Interests payable FERTFIE 32,958,333.51 32,958,333.47
Other payables H A R 1,599,009,547.04 2,098,746,409.80
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FREHNIERBE & 1,398,153,360.39
Other current liabilities HibneaE 13 474,669,460.90 722,824,200.00
Total current liabilities nBEEE 9,890,744,734.79 14,139,642,506.67
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Bonds payable [ERES - 1,398,219,228.23
Long term payroll payable £ BARE {58 T A 28,208,354.88 15,815,305.29
Special payables SRR 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
Deferred income W 14 324,194,404.72 259,363,246.49
Total non-current liabilities EREBESS 372,402,759.60 1,693,397,780.01
Total liabilities BEAE 10,263,147,494.39 15,833,040,286.68
Shareholders’ equity e T
Share capital e 3,998,619,278.00 1,999,309,639.00
Capital reserve -V\UNI 1,011,431,890.64 1,011,431,890.64
Other comprehensive income HAiRE Was 50,320,000.00 47,940,000.00
Special reserve EIEGEE 43,771,198.92 31,283,539.94
Surplus reserve BHNTR 1,221,269,763.04 3,051,742,591.19
Retained earnings AABFE 24,023,621,526.87 23,203,848,602.84
Total shareholders’ equity REERAE 30,349,033,657.47 29,345,556,263.61
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity BEMRRER AT 40,612,181,151.86 45,178,596,550.29
The financial statements have been signed by: WIEMKRBATATES

Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:

EERERA TESHITIERAEA: SEHEREA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Wang Junwei
=B BB = FE&E
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INCOME STATEMENT

Year 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

il i &

—E-AFE(ARKT)

Note XV 2015 2014
fiz+h 20155 20144
Revenue BEIA 15 12,895,754,445.97 23,687,428,634.93
Less: Cost of sales W EEERR 15 9,916,275,770.69  17,346,646,322.46
Taxes and surcharges &R S R 69,962,635.51 130,914,842.70
Distribution and selling expenses HEER 512,493,539.31 841,069,714.96
General and administrative expenses BEEEA 1,315,131,114.05 1,828,731,874.89
Finance expenses %8 A (228,627,751.13) (255,939,935.08)
Impairment loss of assets AEREER (11,296,945.18) 48,508,567.71
Add: Investment income e wEWRES 16 432,313,723.54 443,416,862.97
Incl: Share of profit of associates and Erh o HEETEA
Jjointly controlled enterprises BEPEN
REM 7 (16,196,195.63) 16,070,619.10
Operating profit 2 KI5 1,754,129,806.26 4,190,914,110.26
Add: Non-operating income o EEINEA 125,716,175.93 39,450,216.18
Incl: Gain on disposal of non-current B IEndBE
assets o=y 736,969.72 773,091.96
Less: Non-operating expenses B EEINTH 6,261,623.62 10,074,988.41
Incl: Loss on disposal of non-current Heh : IEREEE
assets BEERX 67,413.90 3,528,992.78
Total profit MELREE 17 1,873,584,358.57 4,220,289,338.03
Less: Income tax expenses W FTS R E A 18 185,216,250.04 535,096,772.25
Net profit FFE 1,688,368,108.53 3,685,192,565.78
Net other comprehensive income after tax H iAW mFi & F58 2,380,000.00 39,440,000.00
Those other comprehensive income to be ARG E D LB
reclassified into profit or loss Efibire e
Change of fair value of available-for-sale AtEESREE
financial assets NRBEEZD) 2,380,000.00 39,440,000.00
Total comprehensive income LA E%E 1,690,748,108.53 3,724,632,565.78
The financial statements have been signed by: WIEMRBATALEE

Legal Representative:

EERERA

Tan Xuguang
=B

Principal in charge of accounting:

FEEHTIEEEA

Kwong Kwan Tong

BRE

Head of accounting department:

SEEEREA

Wang Junwei
T&E
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year 2015 (Expressed

in Renminbi Yuan)

RREDEMNE

—F-nFE(AE%T)

2015 20155
Other
comprehensive
Share capital ~ Capital reserve income  Special reserve  Surplus reserve  Retained earnings Total equity
B BEDR EftralE BEGR BUNR AEAE RRERAT
| At beginning of year — REEYBE 1,999,309,639.00  1,011,431,890.64 47,940,000.00 31,283539.94  3,051,742,591.19  23,203,848,602.84  29,345,556,263.61
Il. Movements in current year - AEEREYLE
() Total comprehensive revenue (=) Akses - - 2,380,000.00 - - 1,688,368,108.53  1,690,748,108.53
(I Profit appropriation (Z) MEsk
1. Appropriation to surplus 1. ROBHAE
reserve - - - - 168,836,810.85  (168,836,810.85) -
2. Distrbution to awners 2 HRENAR - - - - - (699.758373.65)  (699,758,373.65)
() Internal transfer of owners (=) EdkanPLE
equity
1. Capitalzation of surplus 1. BRAEERER
reserve 1,999,309,639.00 - - - (1,999,309,639.00) - -
(V) Special reserve () STk
1. Appropriation during the 1. RERR
year - - - 17,068,584.00 - - 17,068,584.00
2. Used during the year 2 TERR - - - (4580925.02) - - (4580,925.02)
[Il. Atend of year = KEERBE 3998,619,278.00  1,011,431,890.64 50,320,000.00 43,771,198.92  1,221,269,763.04 24,023,621,526.87 30,349,033,657.47
The financial statements have been signed by: WIEmMRAATALEE :

Legal Representative:

EERRA

Tan Xuguang
BIEN
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQuiTY (CONTINUED)

Year 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

RRIEDZZLEIER(IE)
—E-AFE(ARKT)

2014 20144
Other
comprehensive
Share capital Capital reserve income Special reserve Surplus reserve  Retained eamings Total equity
e U Hfttra ks ARG LI AR RRERAT
I, Atbeginning of year — REEAHRE 1,999,309,639.00  1,010,975,033.38 850000000  21,319,709.95 2,683,22333461 20,387,002,703.39 26,110,330,420.33
Il. Movements n current year - AEEREHSE
() Total comprehensiverevenue (=) AKKEE - - 39,440,00000 - - 3685,192,565.78  3,724,632,565.78
(1) Injection and reduction (2) RERAREDER
1. Others 1. 4 - 456,857.26 - - - - 456,857.26
(Il Profit appropriation (Z) FEsE
1. Appropriation to surplus 1. RPBHAE
reserve - - - - 368519256.58  (368519,256.58) -
2. Distribution to owners 2 HRRHAR = = = = - (49982740975  (499,827,409.75)
(1V) Special reserve (m) EeE
1. Appropriation during the 1. KERE
year = = = 17,167,887.67 = = 17,167,887.67
2. Used during the year 2 REFR = = = (7,204,057.68) - - (7,204,057.68)
Il Atend of year = FEERBE 1999,309,639.00 101143189064 4794000000  31,283,539.94  3,051,742,591.19 23,203,848,602.84 29,345,556,263.61
The financial statements have been signed by: HEHMERAA T ATEE
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EERERA - FEGSHIEREREA BRMEEBERA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Wang Junwei
BBk B FEE
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

RERER

—E-AFE(ARKT)

Note XV 2015
MizE+H 20154

[.- CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES — -

2014
20144

REEHERNHERE

Cash received from sales of goods or HEMm « REETH

rendering of services WEHE L 15,154,156,419.73 23,476,269,591.71
Other cash received relating to operating U B L A ERLAT i E B

activities BENRE 687,259,802.99 358,931,258.93
Subtotal of cash inflows from EEBRBMANG

operating activities 15,841,416,222.72 23,835,200,850.64
Cash paid for goods and services BEEm - BXEH%

YRS 13,063,355,403.20 13,907,215,965.44

Cash paid to and on behalf of FATEB T AR A

employees BIZNRES 999,923,941.09 1,213,516,630.31
Cash paid for all types of taxes ERMEERE 873,563,297.33 1,828,183,792.78
Other cash paid relating to ST EM AL EE)

operating activities EENERS 967,726,499.62 1,363,839,871.92

Subtotal of cash outflows from

operating activities

KRR MM NGt

15,904,569,141.24

18,312,756,260.45

Net cash flows (used in) / from

operating activities

BEERB(EM),/EED

Rene s

19 (63,152,918.52)

5,522,444,590.19

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Tan Xuguang

B
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Principal in charge of accounting:
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CAsH FLow STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Year 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES = ~

Cash received from sale of investments
Cash received from return on investments
Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries

REERDEANHEERE

BEERERE MRS
BSREWSWEI MRS
RBRETARIREMEEE

mEXR(IE)

—E-AFE(ARKT)

2015 2014
20155 20144
400,000,000.00 =

489,728,433.53 461,953,343.49

Legal Representative:

EEREA TEER

Tan Xuguang
FB

BRI =

Principal in charge of accounting:

tTEREA

Kwong Kwan Tong

and other business entities fIEIIR &R 80,040,728.75 =
Net cash received from disposal of REETEE  EBFEE

fixed assets, intangible assets and other FEMREEEKEH

long-term assets BEFE 400.00 64,228.80
Other cash received relating to W B H A EL4E B E )

investing activities BENRE - 17,183,500.00
Subtotal of cash inflows from REZBRSMANE

investing activities 969,769,562.28 479,201,072.29
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, BREETEE  BVEE

intangible assets and other FMEMREAEESNH

long-term assets He 453,520,756.68 189,727,350.75
Cash paid for acquisition of investments AL NHIRE 640,052,638.25 1,674,087,326.84
Subtotal of cash outflows from REESR SR/ GT

investing activities 1,093,573,394.93 1,863,814,677.59
Net cash flows used in REEBE AR

investing activities HEene g5 (123,803,832.65) (1,384,613,605.30)

The financial statements have been signed by: MIEMEAATALTES

Head of accounting department:

SERBREA

Wang Junwei
TEE
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CAsH FLow STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Year 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

iﬁﬁ)ﬁg%(mg)
—E-AFE(ARKT)

Note XV 2015 2014
fE+h 20154 20144
ll.  CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES = « E&EEFRAMESRE
Cash paid for repaying debts EREEBZINERS - 1,300,000,000.00
Cash paid for distribution of dividends DR - FEEk
or profits and for interest expenses EBNFESZMNES 781,518,373.65 643,277,409.75
Other cash paid relating to S EAMEEEEE)
financing activities EANE 20,801,919.60 28,236,348.60
Subtotal of cash outflows from EBTEHRESTH NG
financing activities 802,320,293.25 1,971,513,758.35
Net cash flows used in L& EEFEAN
financing activities Reme T (802,320,293.25) (1,971,513,758.35)
IV. EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATE [ - [EXREEHHIRSNTE
ON CASH 32,447.64 1,940.92
V. NET (DECREASE)/ INCREASE INCASHAND T~ HE&RIBLEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS ECRA),/ 0 (989,244,596.78) 2,166,319,167.46
Add: Cash and cash equivalents e FNRER
at beginning of year e ZEMBE 13,418,614,444.43 11,252,295,276.97
VI.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS N ERBEEERS
AT END OF YEAR (BB 20 12,429,369,847.65 13,418,614,444.43
The financial statements have been signed by: MIEREAATALES

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Tan Xuguang
=B
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

371 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

I.

CORPORATE BACKGROUND

Weichai Power Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is a joint stock company
limited by shares incorporated in Shandong, the People’s Republic of
China. It was established on 23 December 2002.

The RMB ordinary A shares and overseas listed foreign H shares issued by
the Company were listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, respectively. The registered address of
the Company’s headquarters is 197, Section A, Fu Shou East Street, High
Technology Industrial Development Zone, Weifang, Shandong Province.

The primary operations of the Company covers: Design, development,
production, sale, repair, import and export of diesel engines and auxiliary
products; automobile (except sedans), automobile axle and components,
gear boxes and components and other automobile components,
hydraulic pumps, hydraulic motors, hydraulic valves, gears and gear
transmission devices, ancillary casting and casting products of hydraulic
components; technical consultation and technical services; leasing of self-
owned houses; sale of steel; business management service; forklift trucks
and warehouses technology services (should hold operating permit(s) for
operations requiring administrative permission). The Company operates
in the transportation equipment manufacturing industry.

Weichai Group Holdings Limited and Shandong Heavy Industry Group
Co., Ltd., established in the PRC, are the parent company and ultimate
parent company of the Group respectively.

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors of
the Company on 30 March 2016. Pursuant to the Articles of Association,
these financial statements will be put forth to the general meeting for
consideration and approval.

The consolidation scope of consolidated financial statements is
determined on the basis of control. Please refer to Note VI for changes
this year.
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PREPARATION BASIS OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic Standard and
specific accounting standards, implementation guidance, interpretations
and other relevant provisions issued and amended subsequently by the
Ministry of Finance (the “MOF") (collectively referred to as “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises”).

The financial statements are presented on a going concern basis.

In preparing these financial statements, all the assets (other than certain
financial instruments) are carried at historical cost. Non-current assets
classified as held-for-sale and assets under disposal group classified
as held-to-sale are carried at the lower of fair value less foreseeable
expenses or original carrying amount upon satisfying conditions for
held-for-sale. If the assets are impaired, corresponding provisions for
impairment shall be made according to relevant provisions.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Accounting policies and accounting estimates are formulated based on
the actual characteristics of production and operation. These are reflected
in the provision for bad debts in respect of receivables, classification of
fixed assets and depreciation estimation, classification of intangible assets
and long-term pre-paid expenses and estimation of amortization.

1. Statement of compliance with Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises
The financial statements present, fairly and fully, the financial
position of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2015
and the results of operations and the cash flows for year 2015 in
accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

2. Accounting year
The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to 31
December of each calendar year.

3. Functional currency
The functional currency of the Company and the currency used in
preparing the financial statements were Renminbi. The amounts
in the financial statements were denominated in Renminbi, unless
otherwise stated.

The subsidiaries, jointly controlled enterprises and associates of the
Company may determine their own functional currencies based
on the major economic environment in which they operate the
business. In preparation of financial statements, their functional
currencies shall be translated into RMB.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

371 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

ITI.SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

4.

Business combination

A business combination is a transaction or event that brings
together two or more separate entities into one reporting entity.
Business combinations are classified into business combinations
involving entities under common control and business combinations
not involving entities under common control.

Business combinations involving entities under
common control

A business combination involving entities under common control
is a business combination in which all of the combining entities
are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before
and after the combination, and that control is not transitory. For
a business combination involving entities under common control,
the party that, on the combination date, obtains control of another
entity participating in the combination is the absorbing party, while
that other entity participating in the combination is a party being
absorbed. Combination date is the date on which the absorbing
party effectively obtains control of the party being absorbed.

Assets and liabilities that are obtained by the absorbing party in
a business combination involving entities under common control,
including goodwill arising from the acquisition of the party being
absorbed by the ultimate controller, shall be accounted for on
the basis of the carrying amounts on the financial statements of
the ultimate controller at the combination date. The difference
between the carrying amount of the net assets obtained and the
carrying amount of the consideration paid for the combination (or
the aggregate par value of shares issued as consideration) shall
be adjusted to share premium under capital reserve. If the capital
reserve is not sufficient to absorb the difference, any excess shall
be adjusted against retained earnings.
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ITI.SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
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4.

WEICHAI POoWER Co., LTD.

Business combination (Continued)

Business combinations not involving entities under
common control

A business combination not involving entities under common
control is a business combination in which all of the combining
entities are not ultimately controlled by the same party or parties
both before and after the combination. For a business combination
not involving entities under common control, the party that, on
the acquisition date, obtains control of another entity participating
in the combination is the acquirer, while that other entity
participating in the combination is the acquiree. Acquisition date
refers to the date on which the acquirer effectively obtains control
of the acquiree.

The acquirer shall measure the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired in the business
combination not involving entities under common control at their
fair values on the acquisition date.

The excess of the sum of the consideration paid (or equities
securities issued) for business combination and equity interests in
the acquiree held prior to the date of acquisition over the share of
the attributable net identifiable assets of the acquiree, measured
at fair value, was recognized as goodwill, which is subsequently
measured at cost less cumulative impairment loss.

In case the fair value of the sum of the consideration paid (or
equities securities issued) and equity interests in the acquiree held
prior to the date of acquisition is less than the fair value of the
share of the attributable net identifiable assets of the acquiree, a
review of the measurement of the fair values of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities, the consideration paid
for the combination (or equity securities issued) and the equity
interests in the acquiree held prior to the date of acquisition is
conducted. If the review indicates that the fair value of the sum
of the consideration paid (or equities securities issued) and equity
interests in the acquiree held prior to the date of acquisition is
indeed less than the fair value of the share of the attributable net
identifiable assets of the acquiree, the difference is recognized in
current profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

371 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

ITI.SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

4.

Business combination (Continued)

Business combinations not involving entities under
common control (Continued)

For a business combination involving enterprises not under
common control and achieved in stages, the Group remeasures
its previously-held equity interest in the acquiree to its fair value
at the acquisition date. The difference between the fair value and
the carrying amount is recognized as investment income for the
current period; the amount recognized in other comprehensive
income using the equity method and relating to the previously-held
equity interest in the acquiree shall be accounted for in accordance
with the same accounting treatment for direct disposal of relevant
asset or liability by investee. Movement of other owners’ equity
(excluding net profit or loss, other comprehensive income and
profit distribution) shall be transferred to profit or loss for the
current period to which the acquisition date belongs.

Consolidated financial statements

The consolidation scope of consolidated financial statements
is determined on the basis of control, including the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 of the Company
and all of its subsidiaries. A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled
by the Company, including separable parts of an enterprise or
investee and structured entities controlled by the Company etc.

In preparation of consolidated financial statements, the subsidiaries
use the same accounting period and accounting policies as those
of the Company. When the accounting policies of a subsidiary are
different from those of the Company, the Company shall make
adjustments to the financial statements of the subsidiary based
on its own accounting policies. All intra-group assets, liabilities,
interests, income, expenses and cash flow are eliminated in full on
consolidation in full.

Where the amount of losses of a subsidiary attributable to the
minority shareholders in the current period exceeds their share of
the opening balance of owner’s equity of the subsidiary, the excess
shall be allocated against minority interests.

B 5 ¥R R it 5F (78)
—E—AF+ZA=+—H(AR#T)

= - EZ BRI B5HEEH(48)

4. EEHEE)

FER—1EH TR REGF (B)
BRERR 5D B ERIFR 26T
EAHE - HREERZATFER
WEBE T RBE  mRZBEERE
BHAREBEETENNE  ARE
ERAREEENZETASHRE
Wik BERZARAMKBELN
i d Mg AR E TR E iR & W
A - RIS B B H R E
MEEXRBEHERMNERETEERE

. FE -

H b 4R A& U as A0 B

DESIMEMBRRESEE - ERE

BERmMEEHEE

5. AfEIBERE

AT ERERNE O EE TS AE
RIET  BREARAREHBTFARE
2015412 318 It FE R B R
= FATE - REWAQFEHEHE

D ik

) o

(Bh%¥  wRABMHASERE
AR R w] PR I e AL 58

mBLA HFU MRS - FREIRA MR
ARRB—HEO SRS ETBR -
HF AR A EFERNERNRR]F
MEFTBR  EREARANER
RPB—H - AEBARE R ZH
MAITERZELENEE - AFE - #
@ WA - BERARSRER A

2RRIEEH

FRADEBRRD ENE HIEEES
TAOBBRREZ T ARSI R ER
THEANMES - EREDRD

R g -

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F#R

117



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

ITI.SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

118

5.

WEICHAI POoWER Co., LTD.

Consolidated financial statements (Continued)

For subsidiaries acquired through business combinations not
involving entities under common control, the operating results and
cash flows of the acquiree shall be included in the consolidated
financial statements, from the day on which the Group gains
control, till the Group ceases the control of it. While preparing
the consolidated financial statements, the acquirer shall adjust
the subsidiary’s financial statements, on the basis of the fair
values of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognized on the acquisition date.

For subsidiaries acquired through business combinations involving
entities under common control, the operating results and cash
flows of the acquiree shall be included in the consolidated
financial statements from the beginning of the period in which the
combination occurs. While preparing the comparative consolidated
financial statements, adjustments are made to related items in
the financial statements for the prior period as if the reporting
entity established through combination has been existing since the
ultimate controller begins to exercise control.

The Group's control over an investee is re-assessed if change in
relevant facts and situations causes changes in one or more of the

control substances.

Where there is no loss of control, the change in minority interests is
accounted for as equity transaction.
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